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Financial and Operational Highlights Bt i B ¥ 5=

(Amounts expressed in HK$’ million,

unless specified)

(ABEERETREM  BRIEFBIEHAMN Kz —FB—=%F

Turnover

Profit for the year
attributable to ordinary
equity holders of
the Company

Total equity
Total assets

Total liabilities to
total equity ratio

Total interest-bearing debts
to total equity ratio

Current ratio

Trade and bills receivables
(excluded bills
receivable — intra-group
trade) to turnover (days)

Inventories to turnover
(days)

Net assets per share
(HK cents)

Return on total assets
(%)

Return on turnover
(%)

Interest cover
(times)

EBITDA

EBITDA on turnover (%)

Basic earnings per share
(HK cents)

Notes 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
ZE-C-F ZE2——F ZE-FBF ZEENF
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
AENEET) AEAEET) (#A5ET) AEAEET)
EER 11,251 13,766 11,862 10,538 9,998
EAREEER
FrE&EEML
INEE R T
734 938 1,135 1,012 861
AR 6,170 5,886 5,522 4,800 4,278
WMEE 12,313 13,436 12,260 8,255 6,792
FES-REg:cl
WmERHE = 1.0 1.3 1.2 0.7 0.6
BB EKE
BARER =R 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.4 0.2
FELE = 1.7 1.5 1.6 1.9 2.0
BERERAZREE
(T EFEER
EZEE—&%
NEBE H)
Lhe %5 (H) 30 29 29 35 34
FELLEER
(A) 65 72 91 75 60
BREEFH
(B HAL) 453 432 406 360 322
MEERBR
(%) 6.0 7.0 9.3 12.3 12.7
EEBELORE
(%) 6.5 6.8 9.6 9.6 8.6
F B RPEEL =
(F%) 1 15 31 58 118 26
B B ER
1 68 A1 7 E 2 1,165 1,511 1,803 1,549 1,389
B B ER
A RIELE
EERH(%) 10.4 11.0 15.2 14.7 13.9
EREREF
(B #Al) 3 53.9 68.9 84.5 76.1 64.9
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Financial and Operational Highlights i i ¥ 5=

(Amounts expressed in HK$’ million,

unless specified) Note 2013
(ABMEETREN  RSBIZFHIN) MaE —E—=%

2012 2011 2010 2009
—®--F —FT——F -“B-BF "BIhE
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(K15 5T) (#1557 (#1E55T) (&155T)

Dividends per share ERERE
(HK cents) B #Al) 40 50 53 48 40
Dividend yield (%) & 2B =E(%) 4 4.9 5.3 6.4 5.6 10.0
Number of issued shares ERITRHEE
(million) (B &) 1,364 1,361 1,361 1,335 1,327
Number of employees : EEAH:
Hong Kong and Macau BEERIEM 680 805 785 728 704
Taiwan =01 571 737 700 696 741
Mainland China =N 19,196 22,950 22,770 22,620 22,254
Singapore 03 — — — — 197
Malaysia ERAE — — — — 160
Total @y 20,447 24,492 24,255 24,044 24,056
Notes: HfEE -
1. Interest cover was calculated by dividing the profit before interest and 1. FUBARFE LL 3 2 51 5 75 7.8 R Bl TR AT 2 it RS2 7 2
tax by the interest expenses. BHZHEE-

2. EBITDA is the earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation
expenses.
3. Number of shares was on weighted average basis.

4. Dividend yield was calculated by dividing the dividends per share by the
closing market price per share as at the end of the respective reporting
period.

5. The financial results of the above refer to the results of the Group for
each financial year. And, the other figures used were the position of the
Group as at the end of the respective reporting period.

2 B W TERBHEIFEBRAFE - BE 47
ER i E IR -

3 R#E I P EEFNE -
4 REEIHEZ A ERGRREEREEREH ARG

BRKTHEZLLE -

5 M E AT IE A EBR A B FEREE MR
B F ISR FERREEREHR 2GR

BAEEEERARN —E-=FRH



The Group experienced a tough financial year. Revenue reduced to
HK$11,251 million, a decrease of 18.3% over the same period last year.
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders dropped by 21.7% to
HK$734 million.

In the first half period, market conditions for the textile business were
extremely unfavourable. The China cotton price was unusually higher
than the international cotton price as the China government offered a
relatively high guaranteed minimum price to the cotton growers.
Thus, the business lost substantial orders and performance was
adversely affected. In the second half, the price gap between the
China cotton and the international cotton went back to a reasonable
level. Since then, the textile operation has gradually normalized.

The retail business was also difficult in the year. The consumer
sentiment in the mainland China was sluggish. Many local retailers
continued to discount product price substantially to rectify their over-
inventory position. Under such competitive situation, the Management
took a conservative strategy by eliminating more non-performing
stores.

The global market conditions shall remain uncertain for a while.
Recently, the U.S. retailing market has shown some signs of recovery.
In the coming fiscal year, the Group will allocate more capital
expenditure in the textile sector to increase further capacity. The
expansion in the retail business would be held for some time until
improved consumer sentiment can be seen in the mainland China

market.

The Group will continue to maintain a healthy financial status and to
accelerate operational efficiency. Though the coming time will be
challenging, | am still optimistic to achieve progressive results in the

coming year.

On behalf of the board, | wish to express my gratitude to our
shareholders and business partners for their continuing support to the
Group. | would also like to convey my thanks to our loyal colleagues
for their excellent performance.

Poon Bun Chak

Executive Chairman

Hong Kong, 17 June 2013
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BUSINESS REVIEW

For this financial year ended 31 March 2013, the Group’s total
turnover decreased by 18.3% to HK$11,251 million (2012 : HK$13,766
million). Profit for the year attributable to the ordinary equity holders
of the Company amounted to HK$734 million (2012 : HK$938 million),
a decrease of 21.7%. The Group’s gross profit margin was 30.9% (2012
1 29.6%), an increase of 1.3 percentage points from last year. The
Board has recommended a final dividend of HK27.0 cents (2012 :
HK24.0 cents) per ordinary share. Including interim dividend, total
dividend per ordinary share would be HK40.0 cents, a decrease of
20.0% from last year's HK50.0 cents.

Textile business

Net sales of the business had reduced by 21.7% to HK$5,460 million
(2012 : HK$6,976 million). The amount was 48.5% (2012 : 50.7%) of
the Group's total turnover. This business experienced quite a difficult
time in the first half mainly because of the unusually high cotton price
premium in the mainland China over that of the other global
suppliers. The gross profit margin in the first half dropped adversely to
13.3%. Starting from the second half, the textile business operation
has been more favourable as the price gap between the China cotton
and the global cotton went back to a reasonable level. The gross
profit margin in the second half thus improved to 18.7%. For the
whole year, the Group’s gross profit margin was 16.0% (2012 : 14.8%).
In the year, the average selling price decreased by 6.0% and the sales
volume decreased by 15.5%. The performance and the key financial

ratios of the business were as below:

XK EE
BE_Z-—=ZF=ZA=+t—HLEZXFHEE"
AEBZHAEEHERLI183%EEEI11,255188
T(ZEBE—ZF BEI13766BET) AR TLE
AREEMEEREAEEZNABEBIMEET
(ZEB—ZF B¥I3BEET)  WD21.7% ° &
EEZENEA309% (=T — =F29.6%) ' &
EEFHIZEENH - ESSEBIRBEARAHR
EEEBERBE2IMMI(ZZE—ZF: B¥240
) - BRIGHREE SZERBREAEE SR
40.01L - BREF 2 B ¥ 50.01L T $£20.0%

HWEKHEEFTHETR21.7%E B 54608 8
T(ZE——F :BH¥6976HEBT) - LEBEAX
EEBEEEE 2485% (ZF — ZF :50.7%) °
EER T EELERRNEFTEHATEREE
BASEMSNE2REMMEES - ERER L¥
FEMBKZEIB3% HT¥FHB HEBEBHE
B4 EDPEREEHZREEEREZERLEE
BEAF EFNERTEFHREZZE18T% 2 F
et AEBZHBEBEFNRE16.0%(=F—
T 148%) c RER FHEREET %6.0%
MHBTEHRISS5% HEKCRERTEHHL
EHINT :

Net sales HEFHE 5,460 6,976 5,971 5,540 5,058
Gross profit margin (%) EME(%) 16.0 14.8 20.4 21.6 21.2
Operating profit (note 1) EERE (B T) 546 692 908 853 776
EBITDA (note 1) B B -ER

s R FE (KAL) 765 916 1,137 1,074 992
Return on total assets (%) mEEWEE%)

(note 2) (BtaE2) 6.3 6.4 8.3 12.6 13.7
Return on sales (%) (note 2)  $HE W= = (%) (F15E2) 12.4 10.7 14.6 14.9 15.1
Return on equity (%) (note 2) 1 W3 2= (%) (Kt 2) 11.2 13.4 17.4 18.8 18.9
Capital expenditure BARM R W 45 57 80 121 104

Notes: Bifat -
(1) Exclude interest income and rental income. (1 T EIEFERARESIKA -
(2)  Exclude rental income. @ T EIFEHSKA -
BREEEBERAT —Z-—=FRH



BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Retail and distribution business

Net sales of the business dropped by 14.8% to HK$5,768 million (2012:
HK$6,766 million). The amount represented 51.3% (2012 : 49.2%) of
the Group'’s total turnover. The business environment was quite tough
in the period. The consumer conditions were sluggish in the mainland
China. Meanwhile, many local retailers continued to make heavy
discounting to improve their over-inventory status. The gross profit
margin was stable at 44.9% (2012: 44.8%). The Group took a
conservative business approach to reduce 241 stores in the year. The
performance and the key financial ratios of the business were as

K EEE)

TERDHEY
HWEKZHEEFET K148% % /& ¥5,7688
Brx(ZZE—_F:8%e766B8Ht)  LEH
AAEEZHALEEBEZ53% (2T — ZF:
49.2%) - HINKRERBHBARF -PEHERR
RAE-BE FZEHTEFHBEANBBIGUAR
EHRZZEF EFNERFERMM9% (ZF—=
F 1 44.8%)  c AEBRRBRTZEH L AR
T2 EH HEBRCRERTEGHLERR
BT

below:

(@) the business performance and the key financial ratios were as

(@) EBREARTEMHLERRIIMT :

follows:
Net sales HEFH 5,768 6,766 5,857 4,960 4,900
Gross profit margin (%) ERME(%) 44.9 44.8 47.1 46.4 453
Sales growth of comparable T E4HEERE
shops (%) (note 1) Lt = (%) (BtaE1) (12.0) 2.9 13.8 3.7 6.5
Operating profit/(loss) EEFE(FE)
(note 2) (Bfat2) (144) 157 407 253 160
EBITDA BB -ER
(note 2) 12 85 B R
(Btat2) 6 276 495 351 279
Return on total assets (%) BEEWZEE(%)
(note 3) (KaE3) (7.6) 3.2 12.5 9.7 5.5
Return on sales (%) HE WS =E(%)
(note 3) (Kta£3) (3.0) 1.3 5.0 3.7 1.3
Return on equity (%) RERREE(%)
(note 3) (KtaE3) (20.4) 9.0 38.6 40.0 23.5
Capital expenditure BEARM T 119 192 109 53 107
Notes: Mt -
(1) Comparable shops include shops with full year operation during ) AL EHIERZERBEFI —FHEL FEE
the year and the preceding year. 4 o
(2)  Exclude interest income and rental income. @ TEIEFERAREZKA
(3)  Exclude rental income. B TEIFEHTKA -

@ TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013



Management’s Discussion and Analysis EEE 2

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Retail and distribution business (continued)

(b)

(@]

the analysis of turnover by major brand was as follows:

¥ %[0 B ()
BERSHER(H)
(b) BREBRBMHEHNOT

3
rgé

K3 #r

(HK$’million)
(B EHET)
Baleno e 3,038 3,653 3,089 2,463 2,311
S&K S&K 742 940 846 757 809
I.P. Zone I.P. Zone 555 699 643 601 639
ebase ebase 381 465 399 326 383
Others Hih 1,052 1,009 880 813 758
Total At 5,768 6,766 5,857 4,960 4,900
the development in different markets was as follows: () HBHHBBREBRAOT:
Mainland China B K BE

Net sales HEFHE

(HK$’ million) (B¥EET) 4,920 5,811 4,987 4,097 3,834
Increase/(decrease) HEFHEZ

in net sales (%) =i Gl A) (%) (15) 17 22 7 23
Retail floor area ZEEEEE

(sq.ft.)** (FFFHR) ** 2,147,536 2,368,260 2,162,123 1,748,531 1,866,008
Number of sales associates** & % 8 # g ** 9,168 11,492 11,348 9,957 10,701
Number of outlets* 2 PImE R *2 3,820 4,044 3,894 3,639 3,828

Hong Kong and Macau EHBRIREM

2012 2011
—E-—fF —EB——&
Net sales HE TR
(HK$’ million) (B EET) 435 460 465 416 402
Increase/(decrease) HEFHEZ
in net sales (%) #in, G2 (%) (5) (1) 12 3 (1)
Retail floor area ZEZAEE
(sq.ft.)** (FFFR) *+ 63,254 61,722 54,960 52,555 56,131
Number of sales associates** ¥ 8 # g ** 425 493 482 422 398
Number of outlets** P9 BB > 68 70 63 62 65
BAREEEERAT —ET—=F#




Management'’s Discussion and Analysis & & 2 il & 247

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) E K EEEE)

Retail and distribution business (continued) SERDHEER(E)

() the development in different markets was as follows: () HHTHEREBRMOT @ (&)
(continued)
Taiwan =)

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

—®-=F —T-—F —T——% -“T-TF —TINF

Net sales HEFHE

(HK$’ million) (BE¥EET) 413 495 405 375 426
Increase/(decrease) HEFE LM

in net sales (%) CR2) (%) (17) 22 8 (12) 7
Retail floor area ZEEEEE

(sq.ft.)** (FIR) * 142,079 151,218 135734 125497 187,230
Number of sales associates** &% S B ** 488 638 608 602 641
Number of outlets* 2 PAm g R *» 166 181 161 154 194

Singapore 7 03

2012 2011 2010 2009

—E-—-% —T-TF —TENF

Net sales HEFRE

(HK$" million) (CBMEET) — — — 48 166
Decrease in net sales HEFEZ

(%) A (%) — — (100) (71) (29)
Retail floor area TEREAEE

(sq.ft.)** (FFHR) ** — — — — 24,877
Number of sales associates** &S H B ** — — — — 157
Number of outlets** P TH & B *# — — _ _ 23

Malaysia EREE

2012 2011 2010 2009

—E——F —E-TF —EBBIF

Net sales HEFH
(HK$’ million) B EET) — — — 24 72
Decrease in net sales HEFHEZ
(%) W (%) — — (100) (67) (11)
Retail floor area SEEAmE
(sq.ft.)** (FFHR)** — — — — 33,185
Number of sales associates** & EHE ** — — — — 134
Number of outlets*# P9 & B ** — — — — 16
* As at the end of the reporting period * RIRERIAR
# For self-managed stores # HEE
o Including self-managed and franchise stores 4 BIE B &G RIGTFASEE

@ TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013



BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Garment manufacturing business

Turnover of this associate decreased by 20.6% to HK$1,087 million
(2012: HK$1,369 million). Net profit contribution to the Group
amounted to HK$44 million (2012 : HK$64 million), a reduction of
31.3%. The operating conditions were unfavourable in the period
mainly due to the volatility of cotton price and the weak economic
status of major markets. In the year, 72.2% (2012 : 68.9%) of the fabric
consumed was supplied by the textile division and sales to the retail
division represented 23.8% (2012 : 31.7%) of its revenue.

FINANCIAL CONDITION

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group continued to maintain a sound financial position. The
current ratio, the total bank borrowings and the gearing ratio as at
the year end were 1.7, HK$3,508 million and -0.3 (2012: 1.5, HK$3,606
million and -0.2) respectively. The gearing ratio refers to the ratio of
the total interest-bearing debts, net of cash and bank balances, to the
total equity. The net cash inflow from operating activities for the year
was HK$967 million (2012: HK$948 million).

During the year, the interest cover, the trade and bills receivables
(excluding bills receivable for intra-group trade) to turnover and the
inventories to turnover were 15 times, 30 days and 65 days (2012: 31
times, 29 days and 72 days) respectively. At the year end, the inventory
level reduced substantially from the end of last year by HK$721 million
to HK$1,992 million. During the year, the Group changed the
settlement method of the intercompany balances among certain
subsidiaries from documentary credit to open account. As a result,
both intra-group bills receivable and intra-group bills payable dropped
significantly by HK$833 million to HK$875 million as at the year end.
The Group mainly satisfied its funding requirements with cash inflow
from its operating activities and bank borrowings. At the year end,
the cash and bank balances, the equity attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company and the unutilized banking facilities were
HK$5,151 million, HK$5,862 million and HK$5,836 million (2012:
HK$4,500 million, HK$5,563 million and HK$4,064 million) respectively.

Capital expenditure

During the year, the Group was prudent in controlling its capital
expenditure spendings. The capital expenditure incurred by the Group
during the year was HK$164 million (2012: HK$249 million). HK$45
million (2012: HK$57 million) was incurred by the textile business for
the addition of plant and machinery. And HK$119 million (2012:
HK$192 million) was incurred by the retail and distribution business
for the renovation of its retail outlets.

Pledge of assets
No significant assets were pledged as at 31 March 2013 and 31 March
2012.

K EEE)

W E N EEBERMP206%ZEBHE1,0878 8
T(ZE—ZF B 1,3698 B t) - HAEEF
EANERABBMEET(ZT—Z_F: B%e64
BET) BP313% - HAEERRIE FESR
FEARBREREIRTETSLEEREREDS
e RER722% (ZFE—ZF:689%) A
FRBEAEEHBBHE MEEFTEAEESE
ERPIBIME & ¥ 4823.8% (2T — =4 :31.7%) °

B AR R

REHESRMKER
FEBEBEFREINMEMRRI REAER K
BhHE RITERBLEREREBLEERIIA
1.7 BH3508H B TK-03(ZFE—=F 15"
BHE3606EBTR-02)  c EAREBEBLRTIEN
RESRETEANAH S EHRUEER - &K
FREMEBNREFAANFEABEICGTEE T (=
T—"F  BEUSEET) -

RAF  FIERELR ERERREER(FE
REENBEZERER) LEXEFAEXER
FEHREXBAE XY DA H151F - 30X K65
R(ZBE—ZF 131 29K R72K) e RAEER
FEXKFHEFRRBETREBEINNEELER
FHBBILINEET -REAFR  AEEREE
FZMBARBMNERGR AL BUENER
MBBRE - EHit RELD > SEMAIBHEUK
EERENEBEARBRI BEBEBEFETELRE
RWBESISEBERL AEEETEULEMER
EHRARBTERREHEEESHNER -RAE
FR BEREBTER - FAQAALERZFESE
EEEERARBARITEERED B ABES151
BB B¥B582EE TR BESS6HET (=
T—_F  BM45005 BT BESS3EEB T

4 —

RB®E4064EETT) °

BEARMESH

RAFR AEEBZEMEHERESIH KREF
AEBEAMTHABEIMEET(ZE—Z=
FBMMIEER) HPHBER I HABY
ASEHER(ZE—Z-F:BY%s78ER) £TEAH
UEMBEMKERE TERIHERIHA
BEIIBBET(ZE—Z_F: B 1288
FTEARTEMHHELH -

BEEEKF
RIE-—=F=A=+—-HBHRZZE-ZH=R=
+—-B UESEREECHEREF-

BAEEEERARN —E-=FRH



FINANCIAL CONDITION (continued)

Contingent liabilities

Details of the contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2013 and 31 March
2012 have been set out in note 34 to the financial statements.

Foreign exchange and interest rate risks

The Group continued to adopt a strict and prudent policy in managing
its interest rate and currency exchange risks. The major interest-
bearing bank borrowings of the Group were HKD, USD and RMB
floating rate borrowings with maturity due within three years. At the
year end, the cash and bank balances amounted to HK$5,151 million
(2012 : HK$4,500 million) were mainly denominated in RMB and were
placed as fixed deposits with well-established financial institution at
fixed interest rate with maturity due within one year. As the global
economic recovery remains modest during the year, the interest rate is
expected to continue to stay at a low level. The Group will continue to
monitor the interest rate movement and arrange financial instruments

to reduce its interest rate risk whenever appropriate.

During the year, the major assets, liabilities, revenue, expenses and
procurements of the Group were denominated in HKD, USD, RMB,
YEN and NTD and the Group had arranged foreign exchange forward
contracts to reduce its currency exchange risk.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2013, the Group had about 20,400 (2012: 24,500)
employees in the Greater China. The remuneration of the employees
was largely based on industry practice and the performance of
individual employee.

Q TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group has been active in
participating in charitable donation, caring for the needy people and
supporting and sponsoring educational and environmental protection
activities. In addition, the Group also encourages its employees,
customers and business partners to partake in the aforesaid activities
with a view to developing a better future for our community.

During the year, some of the activities/organisations the Group
participated in/donated to were:

(1) World Wide Fund For Nature Hong Kong;

(2) The Community Chest of Hong Kong “The Community Chest
Green Day”;

(3) The Community Chest of Hong Kong “Dress Casual Day”;

(4)  HSBC Pok Oi Cycle for Millions 2013; and

(5)  The Community Chest “Love Teeth Day".

The Group believes that the development of a better future for our
community relies on the participation of people, corporates and the
government. Therefore, the Group will continue to invest resources in
all major social, educational and environmental protection activities to

strive for a better future for our community.

OUTLOOK

The global economic conditions shall remain uncertain for a while.
Also, the China consumer sentiment will take some time to recover.
Looking forward to the Group’s financial year 2014, there are still
challenges ahead. The Group will closely monitor the market
conditions to employ suitable management measures.

The Group will continue to upgrade the production capacity of the
textile business. In the coming year, capital expenditure in this sector
will be about HK$200 million. For the retail business, expansion will be
more conservative for a while. The Group will also place great effort
to enhance competitiveness and implement stringent cost control

measures.

The U.S. consumer market has shown some signs of improvement. The
China cotton price is anticipated to be stable in 2013. Though there
are uncertainties, the Management is still confident to achieve
improved results in the coming year.
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The board of directors (the “Board”) has pleasure in presenting the
report and the audited financial statements of Texwinca Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group’s principal activities during the year consisted of the
production, dyeing and sale of knitted fabric and yarn; the retailing
and distribution of casual apparel and accessory; the provision of
franchise services and the provision of repair and maintenance services
for motor vehicles. There were no significant changes in the nature of
the Group's principal activities during the year.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 March 2013 and the state of
affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 42 to 140.

An interim dividend of HK13.0 cents per ordinary share was paid on 9
January 2013. The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend
of HK27.0 cents per ordinary share in respect of the year, to
shareholders on the Register of Members of the Company on 23
August 2013. This recommendation has been incorporated in the
financial statements as an allocation of retained profits within the

equity section of the statement of financial position.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the published audited financial statements and
restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set out below. This summary

does not form part of the audited financial statements.
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (continued) MEEREE @)
Results 4

Year ended 31 March
BE=HA=+—HLEFE
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
=% =-%--% =-B--F =-FT-BF =-IINF

HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000
B F T BETF T BETF T BT T BETF T
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)

(#AEFT) (#M%5T) (#A%ET) (&AEET)

REVENUE L'ON 11,250,843 13,765,827 11,861,780 10,537,966 9,997,737
PROFIT BEFORE TAX R %4 A 5 A 740,014 1,128,219 1,459,584 1,217,351 1,012,572
Income tax expense 18 (59,251) (161,560) (200,231) (112,110) (120,581)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ZRFEEEF 680,763 966,659 1,259,353 1,105,241 891,991
Attributable to: =B
Ordinary equity AAFEEER
holders of the fEE
Company 734,229 938,186 1,135,040 1,011,710 861,224
Non-controlling R ER
interests (53,466) 28,473 124,313 93,531 30,767
680,763 966,659 1,259,353 1,105,241 891,991
Assets, Liabilities and Non-Controlling Interests EE BEREFERER

As at 31 March

=Z=A=+-—H
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—¥-=F£ =-F--%F =-¥-—-F =—B-FF —FINF

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BEFT BT T BT T BETT
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)

(#EAEET) (F&A£ET) (#&AZET) (B&AEET)

TOTAL ASSETS WEE 12,313,156 13,436,323 12,260,041 8,255,487 6,791,954
TOTAL LIABILITIES wmaE (6,142,701)  (7,550,343)  (6,738,305)  (3,455,541)  (2,514,413)
NON-CONTROLLING ~ ZFE#EpRfEx

INTERESTS (308,121) (322,628) (280,037) (219,840) (136,825)

5,862,334 5,563,352 5,241,699 4,580,106 4,140,716

BAEEMERAT —E-=FH @



PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES AND CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment,
investment properties and construction in progress of the Group
during the year are set out in notes 13, 14 and 16 to the financial
statements, respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and share
options during the year, together with the reasons therefor, are set
out in notes 29 and 30 to the financial statements, respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 31(b) to the financial statements
and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2013, the Company’s reserves available for cash
distribution and/or distribution in specie amounted to HK$746,792,000
of which HK$368,222,000 has been proposed as a final dividend for
the year. In addition, the Company’s share premium account, in the
amount of HK$600,898,000, may be distributed in the form of fully
paid bonus shares.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totalling
HK$143,000 (2012: HK$599,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for less than 30% of the total sales for the year. Purchases
from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for less than 30% of
the total purchases for the year.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group's five largest customers and suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive directors:

Poon Bun Chak (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Poon Kei Chak

Poon Kai Chak

Ting Kit Chung

Poon Ho Wa

Independent non-executive directors:
Au Son Yiu

Cheng Shu Wing

Law Brian Chung Nin

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, Mr. Poon Kai Chak has
resigned as an executive director of the Company with effect from 1
May 2013. On 17 June 2013, Mr. Poon Bun Chak resigned as the chief
executive officer and was appointed as the executive chairman, Mr.
Poon Kei Chak and Mr. Ting Kit Chung were appointed as the
executive vice chairman and the chief executive officer, respectively.

In accordance with the Company’s bye-laws, all the existing directors
will retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from Mr. Au Son Yiu, Mr. Cheng Shu Wing and Mr. Law Brian Chung
Nin, and still considers them to be independent as at the date of this
report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The service contracts entered into between the Company and each of
the executive directors as listed above may be terminated by either
party by giving not less than three months’ written notice or

compensation in lieu.

Each of the independent non-executive directors of the Company
entered into a service contract with the Company for a term of one
year.

Save as disclosed above, no director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Company’s board
of directors with reference to directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 37 to the financial statements, no director
had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Executive directors

Mr. Poon Bun Chak, aged 64, is the chairman and chief executive
officer overseeing the planning and development of the Group. He
founded the Group in 1975 and has more than 41 years’ experience in
the textile field. On 17 June 2013, he resigned as the chief executive
officer and was appointed as the executive chairman of the Group to
focus on the strategic planning of the Group.

Mr. Poon Kei Chak, aged 60, is a younger brother of Mr. Poon Bun
Chak. He joined the Group on its establishment in 1975 and has more
than 38 years’ experience in the field. He is responsible for the
purchases, sales and management of the Group. He was appointed as
the executive vice chairman of the Group on 17 June 2013.

Mr. Poon Kai Chak, aged 63, is a younger brother of Mr. Poon Bun
Chak. He joined the Group in 1980 and has more than 33 years’
experience in the industry. He is responsible for the management of
the manufacturing operations of the Group. He resigned as an
executive director on 1 May 2013 due to the reach of the age of

retirement.

Mr. Ting Kit Chung, aged 57,
administration and financial management of the Group. He joined the

is responsible for the general

Group in 1991 and has more than 10 years’ banking experience. He
holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from The University of Hong Kong. He
was appointed as the chief executive officer of the Group on 17 June
2013.

Mr. Poon Ho Wa, aged 35, is a son of Mr. Poon Kai Chak, an executive
director of the Company and a nephew of Mr. Poon Bun Chak and Mr.
Poon Kei Chak, all of whom are executive directors of the Company.
He is responsible for helping the management of the textile business
and production development. He joined the Group in 2002 and has
extensive experience in the investment banking industry. He holds a
Bachelor of Science degree in management from The London School
of Economics and Political Science. He was appointed as an executive
director of the Company in April 2011.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (continued)

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Au Son Yiu, aged 67, has extensive experience in the securities
industry. He is a director of The Association of Former Council
Members of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”), a consultant to Dao Heng Securities Limited (1989-2008)
and a member of the Election Committee for the financial services
subsector election for the 1998 Legislative Council. He is also an
independent non-executive director for several public companies listed
on the Stock Exchange. In addition, he is a former deputy chairman of
The Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited (1992-1994) and
a former council member of the Stock Exchange (1988-1994). He was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company
in July 1995.

Mr. Cheng Shu Wing, aged 63, is a director of Techluxe Investments
Limited. He holds a Bachelor of Business Administration degree from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong and has more than 30 years’
experience in the banking and securities industries in Hong Kong. He
was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company in July 1992.

Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin, aged 55, has worked for several major
international accounting and financial institutions. Besides, he
possesses extensive experience in auditing, corporate finance and
private equity. Mr. Law graduated from University of Toronto in 1980
with a degree in Bachelor of Commerce. He has been a member of the
Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants since 1983. He was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company
in April 2011.

Senior management

Mr. Chan Min, Samuel, aged 58, is a director of the Group's retail
operations. He holds a Master's degree in business administration
from the Northwestern University and The Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology. He is a member of the British Computer
Society. Prior to joining the Group in 1996, Mr. Chan had over 15
years' experience in retail operations and MIS management.

Mr. Chan Chi Hon, aged 50, joined the Group in 1997 and is the
Group’s financial controller and company secretary. Mr. Chan holds a
Master's degree in commerce from The University of New South
Wales, Australia, and is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a certified practising accountant
of the CPA Australia. He has more than 26 years’ experience in
auditing and accounting.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (continued)

Senior management (continued)

Mr. Fung Wai Lun, Daniel, aged 56, is a director of the Group’s retail
operations. Before joining the Group in 1996, Mr. Fung had more than
20 years' experience in the retailing industry.

Mr. Wong Tung Yiu, aged 58, is the director and general manager of
Nice Dyeing Factory Limited, a subsidiary of the Group engaged in the
sale of finished knitted fabric and dyed yarn. He joined the Group in
1994 and has more than 39 years’ experience in the textile industry.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 March 2013, the interests and short positions of the directors in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”), were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

EENERNEBAEBRE #®)

EREBANE (H)

HEMEE AtAR FAEEZEXEBES-
R—AAREMAREB 2R - HELECAEAR
TTEREREXER-

IRBEE AT N\E FAEEREHETRE
WHEEZHWBRARKERBERQIANESRARL
B RR-—NWANENAKRER  BEA=TH

ESRROKEBROD 2EZRKXA

RIE-—Z=F=ZA=Z+—H0 > A2AREES
RHEKRH)FEI2GMEBEFHNETHM  KIRIE
(LTRAREEETBSFREMNZESTRD(EE
FADBARARRERM SEBERALAR
HBe LB (EER(EF RAEKA)EXVE)
WRHOREERO ZEZRXEBNT

Number of shares held and capacity

BRBER S G
Percentage of
Directly or Through Through the Company'’s
beneficially  discretionary controlled issued share
Name of director owned trust corporations capital
HAEAR
H#ER E- -3 EBRTRE
BEER HEREGTE Z2H AR 7S
Executive directors: HITESE:
Poon Bun Chak EWE 32,888,000 170,700,104 456,450,000? 660,038,104 48.4
Poon Kei Chak EHE 22,977,200 — 41,922,000® 64,899,200 4.8
Poon Kai Chak (resigned  &BEB(R=ZZF—=4#
on 1 May 2013) & B — HEE) 10,702,800 — — 10,702,800 0.8
Ting Kit Chung T8 4,100,000 — — 4,100,000 0.3
Independent non- BUFHITES:
executive directors:
Au Son Yiu ELRE 300,000 — — 300,000 0.0
Cheng Shu Wing R A5 58 200,000 — — 200,000 0.0
71,168,000 170,700,104 498,372,000 740,240,104 54.3
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Notes:

(1) The 170,700,104 shares are owned by Farrow Star Limited, which is
wholly-owned by Perfection (PTC) Inc as a trustee for The Evergreen
Trust, a discretionary trust which was founded by Mr. Poon Bun Chak. Mr
Poon Bun Chak is deemed to be interested in these shares in accordance
with the SFO.

2) The 456,450,000 shares are owned by Giant Wizard Corporation in which
Farrow Star Limited has a 97.15% equity interest. A 2.85% interest in

Giant Wizard Corporation is owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak.

3) The 41,922,000 shares are held by Treasure Link International Holdings
Limited, which is jointly owned by Mr. Poon Kei Chak and his spouse.

Long positions in share options of the Company:

Name of director

EEHR
Executive directors: HITEE
Poon Kei Chak EROE

Poon Kai Chak (resigned on 1 May 2013)

Ting Kit Chung THER

Poon Ho Wa BIEE
Independent non-executive directors: BAFHTES:

Au Son Yiu [=Ro;

Cheng Shu Wing S

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2013, none of the directors
had registered an interest or short position in the shares, underlying
shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations that was
required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Save as disclosed in the section “Directors’ interests and short positions
in shares and underlying shares” above and in the section “Share
option scheme” below, at no time during the year were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in the Company
granted to any director or their respective spouses or minor children,
or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any
of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors
to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

BERBR-FE-—Z=ZFEA—HEEF)

EERROREBROZEZERAR

(&)

i3

(1) 5% 170,700,104 5% % 17 B3 Farrow Star Limited#5 %5 + 3%
23 @] Rl i Perfection (PTC) InciX The Evergreen TrustZ 15
TABBE2EREE  Z2EETHEWELERY -
RIB(GRERBEIRE)  EWELLERERBERZ
ER1P B o

@  #%456450000 % AR 17 HiFarrow Star Limited #% 75 97.15%
## 2% 2 Giant Wizard Corporation# & ° Giant Wizard

Corporation 2 285% 1 i 1 EWE L EHER ©

(B AZ41922000/R R 17 B EHIESX LR AT BRERES
2 Treasure Link International Holdlings Limited#$%& °

RADBBEREZHA

Number of share options
directly held or

beneficially owned
BEEFEY
EnBEEBRERR

3,000,000
3,000,000
6,000,000

200,000

200,000
200,000

12,600,000
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Further
details of the Scheme are disclosed in note 30 to the financial

statements.

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share
options outstanding during the year:

BRESE
ARARERN—EERESTE(ZAE) 2B
MEONEERREHASEFHERNSEE
MRERBREMN - ZT BN B REBRERMN
30 E -

TREERFAFDBARTEZBRENZE

Number of share options

BRERE

Exercised
during
the year

Exercise price
of share
options**
BIRE
TEER
HK$ per share
gREWE T

Name or category of
participant

Date of grant of
share options*

At 1 April
2012
R=-Z-—=§
SHEEEBAER mA—H

BREES A G FRABTHE

Executive directors

TES

FRABAK

Cancelled
during
the year

Lapsed
during
the year

At 31 March
2013
R=-Z2-=%
=+-8

Exercise period of
share options

FRABHHE BRAETEAR

Poon Kei Chak 11 September 2002 4.97 5,000,000 (1,500,000) (3,500,000) — — 11 September 2002 to
10 September 2012
BRE ZERCF ZEE-FHhA+-HE
hA+T—-H —E--fRATH
26 March 2004 5.60 3,000,000 — — — 3,000,000 26 March 2004 to
25 March 2014
—EENEF “ZZNFZRAF+REE
=ZA=+XA —Z-MEZA=+EA
8,000,000 (1,500,000) (3,500,000) — 3,000,000
Poon Kai Chak (resigned 11 September 2002 4.97 4,000,000 — (4,000,000) — — 11 September 2002 to
on 1 May 2013) 10 September 2012
BEEBR-F-ZF C—TB-F ZBE-FAA+-HE
BH—A#E) hBA+-8 —Z-—FhA+H
26 March 2004 5.60 3,000,000 — — — 3,000,000 26 March 2004 to
25 March 2014
—EENF —ZTMF=ZA=+XBE
ZAZ=+XAH —Z-ME=ZA=1+EA
7,000,000 — (4,000,000) — 3,000,000
Ting Kit Chung 11 September 2002 4.97 1,500,000 — (1,500,000) — — 11 September 2002 to
10 September 2012
THE —EECF —EE-FRAAT-BE
hA+T—-H ZE-ZFhATH
26 March 2004 5.60 6,000,000 — — — 6,000,000 26 March 2004 to
25 March 2014
—ZENF —ZTMF=ZRA=F+XBZE
=A=t5AH —Z-ME=A=+EA
7,500,000 — (1,500,000) — 6,000,000
Poon Ho Wa 26 March 2004 5.60 200,000 — — — 200,000 1 April 2006 to
25 March 2014
EEE —EENF —ZTAFMA-HE
=ZA=+XA —Z-MEZA=1+EA
22,700,000 (1,500,000) (9,000,000) — 12,200,000
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) BRESTE @)

Number of share options
BREZE
Exercise price Exercised Lapsed Cancelled
Name or category of Date of grant of of share At 1 April during during during At31March  Exercise period of
participant share options* options** 2012 the year the year the year share options

BhE R-B-=F%F =
SHRELBAER BRERRB B TR mA—-H FREAHE FRABAKR FREIHE BRETERR
HK$ per share
SREN T

Independent non-executive directors

BIKBTES
Au Son Yiu 11 September 2002 497 200,000 (200,000) — — — 11 September 2002 to
10 September 2012
B4R —EBC-F —ZZ-FhA+-BE
hA+-8 ZE-ZFhA+H
26 March 2004 5.60 200,000 — — — 200,000 26 March 2004 to
25 March 2014
—ZEMF —EEMFZ/F=+KAZ
=ZA=tXH —Z-MFEZA=t+EA
400,000 (200,000) — — 200,000
Cheng Shu Wing 11 September 2002 4.97 200,000 (200,000) — — — 11 September 2002
to 10 September 2012
LS —ZECF “EZ-FRAT-BE
hA+T—-R —Z-ZFhA+H
26 March 2004 5.60 200,000 — — — 200,000 26 March 2004 to
25 March 2014
—ZENEFE —EZMF=ZA=+<AZE
ZA=+XB ZZ-MFEZA=+EA
400,000 (200,000) — — 200,000
800,000 (400,000) — — 400,000
Other employees
Hitfgg
In aggregate 26 March 2004 5.60 1,380,000 (110,000) — (50,000) 1,220,000 1 April 2006 to
25 March 2014
&t —EENF —ZTAFMA-HZE
=ZA=+kA —Z-MEZA=1+EA
Other eligible participants
Bt A ERSEE
In aggregate 26 March 2004 5.60 4,700,000 (200,000) — — 4,500,000 26 March 2004 to
25 March 2014
ast —ZERF ZEENF=A+RAE
=A=t+RAH —Z-ME=A=+EA
29,580,000 (2,210,000) (9,000,000) (50,000) 18,320,000
Notes: M -

* The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant until the ~ * FE IR AR RE R T3 H AR H AL BT AR LE ©

commencement of the exercise period.

*x The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the case ** BERENITEBRRA DGR R4 R E
of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s share RN E b AE L FE AE ] T I o
capital.

The weighted average closing price of the Company’s shares REEBERETERHAAITRMNINETLY
immediately before the exercise dates of the share options was IWHEASRE6.63TT
HK$6.63 per share.
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Report of the Directors EEE &

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSON'S FERREHEHMAIRBROREBRR
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES RS

At 31 March 2013, the following interests of 5% or more of theissued HR-ZE—=%=A=+—H ' UTEELXLITS
share capital of the Company were recorded in the register of interests  Z{TRAS%HU L 2% CRE(BSRYE
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the &) 336 KB ELHENATATNBEREHERE

SFO: B
Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company: RARTAEBER TR :

Percentage of the

Number of Company'’s issued
Capacity shares held share capital
HERQF
515 f HREAE ERTREABHE
Perfection (PTC) Inc Trustee 2,3 627,150,104 46.0
ZEA
Farrow Star Limited Through controlled corporation 1 456,450,000 33.5
EZEHLH
Directly owned 170,700,104 12.5
EEESR
3 627,150,104 46.0
Giant Wizard Corporation Directly owned 1,2 456,450,000 33.5
HEEESR
Aberdeen Asset Management Plc Through controlled corporation 136,858,000 10.0
and its associates
EIEHAR
FMR LLC Through controlled corporation 82,017,000 6.0
EIEHAR
Notes: M -
1. The interests of Giant Wizard Corporation in the Company were 1. Giant Wizard Corporation#¥ 5 7k 23 &] 2 #& 25 B2Farrow
duplicated by the indirect interests in the Company held by Farrow Star Star Limited B 115 A R Al 2 EZ EHEE ©

Limited.
2. The interests of Giant Wizard Corporation in the Company were 2 Giant Wizard Corporationfs B & 2 &] = #& #% H
duplicated by the indirect interests in the Company held by Perfection Perfection (PTC) Inci 15 EA R al 2 E# EHEE ©

(PTC) Inc.

3. The interests of Farrow Star Limited in the Company were duplicated by 3. Farrow Star Limited #5525 23 &] 2 B &2 B2 Perfection (PTC)
the indirect interests in the Company held by Perfection (PTC) Inc. InciEHFBEA R A ZBEOHES °
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSON'’S
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
(continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2013, no person, other than
the directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in the
interests and short positions in shares and

section “Directors’

underlying shares” above, had registered an interest and short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company that was

required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed the continuing connected transactions set out below,
disclosed in compliance with the requirements of Chapter 14A of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”), and have confirmed that these continuing connected

transactions were entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i)  on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to
the Group than terms available to or from independent third
parties; and

(iii)  in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on

terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Ernst & Young, the Company’s independent auditors, were engaged
to report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information and with reference to Practice Note
740 Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Ernst & Young have issued their unqualified letter
containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed below by the Group in accordance
with relevant clauses of Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules.

TEREREMATARORAEBAR
RS (1

MEXFBEEEN R-_BE-—=F=ZA=1+—
B AL %zs"ﬂﬁiﬁ\%éeéﬁ;%r%
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Details of non-exempt continuing connected transactions:

In accordance with Rules 14A.35 and 14A.45 of the Listing Rules, the
Group is required to disclose certain details of its non-exempt
continuing connected transactions in compliance with Rule 14A.45.

(1)  Lease of a property as a retail outlet from a connected person:
On 26 March 2012, the Group entered into a lease agreement
with Mountain Rich Limited (“MRL"), a company controlled and
owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an executive director and
controlling shareholder of the Company, to lease Tianjin Bin
Jiang Fu Shi Commercial Building at Tianjin City, He Ping Qu, Bin
Jiang Road 282-286, Tianjin, China from MRL as a retail outlet
for the retail and distribution business of the Group for a term
of two years commencing from 1 April 2012 at the monthly
rents of RMB948,000 for the first year and RMB995,000 for the
second year.

(2) Lease of a property as a director’s quarter from a connected
person:
On 26 March 2012, the Group entered into a lease agreement
with Latex (Hong Kong) Limited (“Latex”), a company wholly-
owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an executive director and
controlling shareholder of the Company, to lease 22 Perkins
Road, Jardine’s Lookout, Hong Kong from Latex as a director’s
quarter of the Group for a term of two years commencing from
1 April 2012 at the monthly rent of HK$360,000.

(3) Lease of a property as a training center from a connected
person:
On 26 March 2012, the Group entered into a lease agreement
with Winson Link Enterprises Limited (“WLEL"), a company
wholly-owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an executive director and
controlling shareholder of the Company, to lease Room 42078,
42nd Floor, Metroplaza Tower I, 223 Hing Fong Road, Kwai
Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong from WLEL as a training
center of the Group for a term of two years commencing from 1
April 2012 at the monthly rent of HK$42,000.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Board, at least 25% of the Company's
total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this
report.

AUDITORS
Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their re-appointment as
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual

general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Poon Bun Chak
Executive Chairman

Hong Kong, 17 June 2013
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The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance and enhancing corporate value and accountability. The
principles as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules have been
adopted to shape our corporate governance structure. This report
describes how the principles of the CG Code have been applied during
the year ended 31 March 2013 under different aspects.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

As at 31 March 2013, the Board comprised of eight members. The five
executive directors included Mr. Poon Bun Chak, Mr. Poon Kei Chak,
Mr. Poon Kai Chak, Mr. Ting Kit Chung and Mr. Poon Ho Wa. The
three independent non-executive directors (“INEDs"”) included Mr. Au
Son Yiu, Mr. Cheng Shu Wing and Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin.

Subsequent to this financial year, Mr. Poon Kai Chak has resigned as
an executive director with effect from 1 May 2013. On 17 June 2013,
Mr. Poon Bun Chak resigned as the chief executive officer and was
appointed as the executive chairman, Mr. Poon Kei Chak and Mr. Ting
Kit Chung were appointed as the executive vice chairman and chief

executive officer, respectively.

Mr. Poon Bun Chak, Mr. Poon Kei Chak and Mr. Poon Kai Chak are
brothers. Mr. Poon Ho Wa is a son of Mr. Poon Kai Chak and a nephew
of Mr. Poon Bun Chak and Mr. Poon Kei Chak.

All the existing non-executive directors of the Company entered into
service contracts with the Company for a term of one year
commencing from 1 April 2013, and they are subject to retirement and
re-election at the Company’s annual general meeting in accordance
with Clause 87 of the Company’s bye-laws. Prior to 1 April 2013, all the
non-executive directors of the Company were not appointed for a
specific term.

Independence and Qualification of Independent Non-executive
Directors

The Company has three INEDs representing more than one third of its
Board, which is in compliance with Rule 3.10(1) and Rule 3.10A of the
Listing Rules. All the INEDs possess a wide range of business and
financial experience. One of the INEDs, Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin,
possesses professional accounting qualification in full compliance with
Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. In accordance with Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules, all the INEDs have confirmed their independence for the
year ended 31 March 2013.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Role of the Board

The overall management of the Group is vested with the Board and
the day-to-day management of the business is delegated to the

executive management.

The principal roles of the Board are:

(M

to lay down the Group’s objectives, strategies, policies and
business plan;

(2)  to monitor the performance of each operating segment;

(3) to set appropriate policies to manage risks in pursuit of the
Group's strategic objectives;

(4) to authorise material borrowings and expenditures;

(5) to prepare and approve financial statements, annual and
interim reports, and make judgments that are fair and
reasonable in the preparation of the Company’s disclosure
statements;

(6) to perform corporate governance functions in accordance with
the CG Code, including the determination of the Group’s
corporate governance policies, and the review and monitoring
of the corporate governance practices of the Group; and

(7)  to oversee and review the effectiveness of the risk management

and internal control systems of the Group through review of the
reports form Audit Committee.

Induction and Continuous Professional Development

Newly appointed directors will receive a comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction on the first occasion of their appointment so as to
ensure that they have appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Company as well as the obligation and responsibility
of being a director under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory

requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. Reading materials on the latest development of applicable
laws, rules and regulations will be provided to directors where
appropriate. All directors are also encouraged to attend relevant

training courses at the Company’s expense.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Induction and Continuous Professional Development (continued)
According to the records maintained by the Company, the directors
received the following training during the financial year:

Executive directors BITES
Poon Bun Chak EMWOE
Poon Kei Chak BEHOE

Poon Kai Chak (resigned on 1 May 2013)

Ting Kit Chung THR
Poon Ho Wa BIEE
Independent non-executive directors BIYFHTES
Au Son Yiu BERE
Cheng Shu Wing B 31 58
Law Brian Chung Nin EEF

A:  reading materials relating to the Group, general business or
director’s duties and responsibilities, etc.

B: attending seminars and/or conferences and/or forums

Board Process

The Company has in place clear board process. Regular board meetings
are scheduled at least four times per year. Agendas and accompanying
board papers are served to all directors at least five business days in
advance of each board meeting to facilitate informed discussion and
decision making. Directors may include any matters they wish to
discuss in the agendas. Minutes of the Board and committee meetings
are prepared and kept by the company secretary of the Company, and
are open for inspection by directors upon request. All directors have
access to the advice and services of the company secretary, and are
allowed to seek external professional advice if needed.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued) EExgmm)

Annual General Meeting and Board Meetings BRREFASREESSSE

The Company held an annual general meeting and four regular board #HZEZE=ZZE—-—=Z=ZA=+—HLEER  ALQ T
meetings during the year ended 31 March 2013. Attendance of T —IRREFEXASRNUAESSERSE -
individual Board members at the meetings is set out below: BUEESERECEEHESHEIAOT :

Attended/Number of meetings

held during the tenure of office

RERREE STEERE

Regular Board  Annual General

Directors Meeting Meeting
-3 EEEERER BRBFAE
Executive directors BITESR

Poon Bun Chak BN 4/4 0/1
Poon Kei Chak EHE 4/4 1”71
Poon Kai Chak (resigned on 1 May 2013) BIERB(R=ZE—=FFH—HABEF) 4/4 0/1
Ting Kit Chung TR 44 1”7
Poon Ho Wa BIEE 4/4 1”71
Independent non-executive directors BIAIKHTES

Au Son Yiu BB 4/4 11
Cheng Shu Wing B A1 £ 4/4 11
Law Brian Chung Nin E P F 4/4 171

BOARD COMMITTEES E=ZE59g

The Board has established three board committees to oversee certain EZEZBERY=ZHEESZESUERARQFEH
aspects of the Company’s affairs. Each board committee has itsown FEHEE SEEZSEEESZHRIEINERE
terms of reference relating to its authority and duties, which have MREBE ZESERXHEZERETLIERSE
been approved by the Board and are reviewed periodically. The terms R - EEBZEB S E/RNEHEREQIAR
of reference of each board committee are available on the websites of B3 AT 48 uf ©

the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Audit Committee ERZEES

The Company has established an audit committee (the "Audit ZAQBEERLETRAEI2IGHR RIL—FREE
Committee”) in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. The B(BXZZE®]) BEREZESNWHEBE=
Audit Committee consists of three INEDs, namely Mr. Law Brian Chung B Y FHITEE FRABHFELE BB
Nin, Mr. Au Son Yiu, and Mr. Cheng Shu Wing. The Audit Committee @£ RBHE L E - BHELEAEREZERE
is chaired by Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin, a qualified accounting f& @ WHEBEXETTEK

professional.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Audit Committee (continued)
The principal duties of the Audit Committee include:

(@)  monitoring the preparation of the financial statements;

(b) monitoring and assessing the internal controls system of the
Group;

()  monitoring the performance of the Group'’s internal audit team;

(d) considering the appointment and removal of the external
auditors, the audit fee and the terms of engagement; and

(e) reviewing and commenting on the connected transactions of
the Group.

The Audit Committee held five meetings during the year ended 31
March 2013 to review the followings:

(a) theinternal controls and risk management of the Group;

(b) the financial reporting process and the financial statements of
the Group;

(c) the continuing connected transactions pursuant to the Listing
Rules; and

(d) the amendments to its terms of reference.

The attendance of Audit Committee meetings during the year ended
31 March 2013 is set out below:

Members of the Audit Committee
EREEGRE

BEEZEE @)
EREES(A)
ERZEEIEHERE:
(a) ERBEREMFESR

(b) ERRFEAEEAMEZRLR

(0 EBEEAEEANBEFHEIRR

(d) ZEIBLRHANEALBRR FSER
REBERBER S R

() HFHAKEHERS AURHIER-
RBEZE-ZZ-=F=ZA=1tT-HLFER B
ZESERITEREBUTRUT ¢

() AEENABEZEGERRBERE;

(b) AEENHBEREFRFBHRE

(0 RELETRABEBTHEEHEERS R

(d) HZSZHRXZET-

EREEENEE-_ZE—=F=A=+—-HLHF
ERAZEHHFECTERINT

Attended/Number of meetings held

during the tenure of office
RERREE " BITEBRRE

Law Brian Chung Nin BIE
Au Son Yiu E&R
Cheng Shu Wing S
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the
Listing Rules. The Remuneration Committee consists of three INEDs
and one executive director, namely Mr. Au Son Yiu, Mr. Cheng Shu
Wing, Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin and Mr. Ting Kit Chung, respectively.
The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Au Son Yiu.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendation to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure
for the remuneration of directors and senior management as well as
the compensations payable to directors. The remuneration of the
directors and senior management is determined with reference to the
performance of each individual and the Company, the market
conditions and the industry practice. Besides, the Remuneration
Committee will ensure that no director or any of his/her associate may
be involved in the determination of his/her own remuneration.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Remuneration Committee
held three meetings to review the amendments to its terms of
reference, the directors’ fee and also the remuneration and

performance bonus of executive directors and senior management.

The attendance of Remuneration Committee meetings during the year
ended 31 March 2013 is set out below:

Members of the
Remuneration Committee

FMZESERE

Au Son Yiu E LR
Cheng Shu Wing B fat 5
Law Brian Chung Nin EME
Ting Kit Chung THR

EEZEg W

FHzee

AAFACEETRAEINH RI—FHES
E(¥MEES ) -FHESCNARERE=
BYKYUTEER-—URTEE HRABLE
GE BWBBEE BHRELERTHOEE
BABAERTHESSNER -

FNEEETEEERANAESREEEEA
ENFHIEREBNESTFESHNREQDE
EERUER RENESRSEEEAENH
B FHMEES2ZZAEBREAAANRE T
BERRITENED I FHEESTERE
RUBESREMEBBEA LT SHEBITZESH
E

RBEZZ-—ZF=ZA=Z=+—-HLFER  HH
ZESRETIRERE  UEHEZSEHRI 2B
A ESHENYTESRSEEEASNEMH
RBRBBBHICA -

FHZEEREE T =F=A=+—HBLHF
ERZERLELHHAINMT

Attended/Number of meetings held
during the tenure of office

REHAHRE ETEHRE

3/3
3/3
3/3
3/3
BAkEEEERAR —Z-=ZFH



BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) consists of three INEDs and one executive director,
namely Mr. Cheng Shu Wing, Mr. Au Son Yiu, Mr. Law Brian Chung
Nin and Mr. Ting Kit Chung, respectively. The Nomination Committee
is chaired by Mr. Cheng Shu Wing.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for making recommendation
of candidates with appropriate experience and qualification to the
Board, reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board and
assessing independence of INEDs.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Nomination Committee
held one meeting to review the amendments to its terms of reference
and the policy for the nomination of directors as well as to assess
independence of the INEDs.

The attendance of Nomination Committee meeting during the year
ended 31 March 2013 is set out below:

Cheng Shu Wing g 1as 6
Au Son Yiu E LR
Law Brian Chung Nin EREF
Ting Kit Chung THEE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has undertaken the corporate governance function to
maintain effective corporate governance within the Group. The
corporate governance duties of the Board have been set out in the
terms of reference of the Board on corporate governance functions
which are available on the website of the Company.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Board approved the
amendments to the terms of reference of Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE PROVISIONS SET OUT IN
THE CG CODE

In the opinion of the directors, the Company complied with all the

code provisions of the CG Code throughout the financial year, except

for the following deviations:

(M

o)

3)

Under code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term and be subject
to re-election.

Prior to 1 April 2013, all the existing non-executive directors of
the Company were not appointed for a specific term, but were
subject to retirement and re-election at the Company’s annual
general meeting in accordance with Clause 87 of the Company'’s
bye-laws.

On 1 April 2013, each of the non-executive directors of the
Company entered into a service contract with the Company for
a term of one year, subject to retirement and re-election at the
Company'’s annual general meeting in accordance with Clause
87 of the Company’s bye-laws. The code provision A.4.1 has
been complied with since then.

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual.

Prior to 17 June 2013, Mr. Poon Bun Chak undertook the roles
On 17 June 2013,
following the resignation of Mr. Poon Bun Chak as the chief

of chairman and chief executive officer.

executive officer, Mr. Ting Kit Chung was appointed as the chief
executive officer of the Group. Since then, the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer have been separated and the code
provision A.2.1 has been complied with by the Company.

Under code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the chairman of the
Board should attend the annual general meeting of the
Company.

The chairman of the Board has delegated the duty of attending
the annual general meeting to an executive director of the
Company. The chairman considers the executive director a
suitable person for taking up such duty as the executive director
has been serving for similar duties for many years and he has
good understanding of each operating segment of the Group.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE PROVISIONS SET OUT IN

THE CG CODE (continued)

(4)  Under code provision A.1.8 of the CG Code, the Company should
arrange appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action
against its directors.

An insurance policy was concluded by the Group on 1 November
2012 which provides full insurance cover under the policy
commencing from the inception of the policy as well as a
retrospective insurance cover for unreported claim before 1
November 2012. As at the date of this report, no claim has been
reported.

DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code of the Listing Rules as the
Company’s code of conduct for dealings in securities of the Company
by the directors. Based on specific enquiry of the Company’s directors,
they have all complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code throughout the financial year.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Mr. Chan Chi Hon, is responsible for
facilitating the board process, as well as communications among board
members, with shareholders and management. The Company
Secretary’s biography has been set out in the “Biographical details of
Directors and Senior Management” section of the “Report of the
Directors”. During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Company
Secretary undertook over 15 hours of professional training to upgrade
his skills and knowledge.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
During the year ended 31 March 2013, fees paid for audit and non-
audit services by the Company to its principal external auditors were

as follows:

Services

BR %%

Audit services rendered ERMHETRE
Review of continuing connected transactions EHNFEBEERS

@ TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for preparing the financial statements of the
Company. The statement from the external auditors of the Company
about their responsibilities has been set out in the Independent
Auditors’ Report on page 40 to 41.

The directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern.

REVIEW OF INTERNAL CONTROLS

The system of internal controls is defined as the internal control
procedures with which the Company uses to ensure the accuracy of its
accounting records, safeguard the assets of the Company and ensure
the compliance with the relevant rules and regulations. The Board is
responsible for maintaining efficient and effective internal controls of
the Company. During the year, the internal audit team, which reports
directly to the Audit Committee, has reviewed the internal controls of
each major operating segment of the Company and has reported its
findings to the Audit Committee. The Board and Audit Committee are
satisfied with the effective internal controls of the Company.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening of Special General Meetings on Requisition by
Shareholders

According to clause 58 of Company’s bye-laws, shareholders holding,
at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one-tenth (10%)
of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the Company, to
require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting, the requisitionists themselves may do so in
accordance with the provisions of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda (as amended) (the “Companies Act”).
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings by
Shareholders

Shareholders who is/are (i) representing not less than one-twentieth
(5%) of the total voting rights of the Company on the date of the
requisition; or (ii) not less than 100 members holding shares in the
Company, is/are entitled to put forward a proposal (which may
properly be put to the meeting) for consideration at a general
meeting of the Company.

The requisition specifying the proposal, duly signed by the
shareholders concerned, together with a statement with respect to
the matter referred to in the proposal must be deposited at the
registered office of the Company. The Company would take
appropriate actions and make necessary arrangements, and the
shareholders concerned would be responsible for the expenses
incurred in giving effect thereto in accordance with the requirements
under Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act once valid documents
are received.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

We strive to provide quality information to shareholders as well as our
many stakeholders regarding the latest developments whilst ensuring
that relevant information is equally and simultaneously provided and
accessible to all interested parties. The Company has adopted a
Shareholder Communication Policy which provides the below
communication channels to shareholders so as to enable them to
engage actively with the Company and exercise their right as

shareholders in an informed manner.

(1)  Meeting shareholders in annual general meetings ("AGM") to
explain results of the Company and answer questions of
shareholders;

(2) Disseminating corporate information to shareholders according
to the rules and regulations;

(3) Meeting fund managers to promote the business of the
Company; and

(4)  Publishing the background, the latest development and the
results of the Group on the Company’s website.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

The Company ensures that shareholders’ views are communicated to
the Board. The chairman of the AGM proposes separate resolutions
for each issue to be considered. Members of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee also attend the
AGM to answer questions from shareholders.

AGM proceedings are reviewed from time to time to ensure that the
Company follows the best corporate governance practices. The notice
of AGM is distributed to all shareholders at least 20 clear business days
prior to the AGM and the accompanying circular also sets out details
of each proposed resolution and other relevant information as
required under the Listing Rules. The chairman of the AGM exercises
his power under the Company’s bye-laws to put each proposed
resolution to the vote by way of a poll. The procedures for conducting
a poll are explained at the meeting prior to the polls being taken.
Voting results are posted on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange on the day of the AGM.

Changes to Constitutional Documents

During the year ended 31 March 2013, there was no significant change
in the Company’s constitutional documents, and these documents are
posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Making Enquiries to the Board
The Group values feedback from shareholders on its efforts to
promote transparency and foster investor relationships. Comments
and suggestions to the Board or to the Company are welcome to
contact the Company Secretary.

Designated contact information
Texwinca Holdings Limited
Address: 16/F Metroplaza Tower Il
223 Hing Fong Road
Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong

Tel.: (852) 2610 7116/(852) 2610 7257
Fax: (852) 2233 1116/(852) 2233 1257
Email: IR@texwinca.com
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To the shareholders of
Texwinca Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Texwinca
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the
"Group”) set out on pages 42 to 140, which comprise the consolidated
and company statements of financial position as at 31 March 2013,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial

statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 March 2013, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower,

1 Tim Mei Avenue,

Central, Hong Kong

17 June 2013
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Consolidated Income Statement =& FBEE

Year ended 31 March 2013 BiZ - ZE—=F=A=+—HIFE

2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
HK$000 HK$°000
BT BEFT
(Restated)
(&AZET)
REVENUE WA 5 11,250,843 13,765,827
Cost of sales HERA (7,777,615) (9,691,759)
Gross profit ER 3,473,228 4,074,068
Other income and gains Hebh A K& W= 5 518,105 342,636
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEER (2,418,931) (2,570,200)
Administrative expenses THER (819,696) (729,996)
Other operating expenses, net HihZEEBH T8 (2,119) (14,594)
Finance costs MEER 8 (54,490) (37,651)
Share of profit of an associate, FEAREE & N EREA
net of tax R % F 58 43,917 63,956
PROFIT BEFORE TAX B B A1 % A 6 740,014 1,128,219
Income tax expense 8 9 (59,251) (161,560)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REERA 680,763 966,659
Attributable to: BB
Ordinary equity holders of the Company AAQ T E@EERMA L 10 734,229 938,186
Non-controlling interests FERER (53,466) 28,473
680,763 966,659
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE FEANAEBEER
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS FTEEERERN
OF THE COMPANY (HK cents) (B HAL) 12
Basic PN 53.9 68.9
Diluted BmEE 53.7 68.3

Details of the dividends for the year are disclosed in note 11 to the
financial statements.

FEEREHBFRENRMBHRRME A -



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income #=& ZEFER

Year ended 31 March 2013 B2 =—E—=F=H=1+—HIFE

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Ordinary equity holders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

7 i A
Hith 2 m A
BEBINEEXEBEEZ

FEERENEAE

B
RRAREBERAAE
FERES

10

2013 2012
—E-=F —E——-fF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT BT T
(GESELE))

(&AZET)

680,763 966,659
59,205 153,136
739,968 1,119,795
790,475 1,077,204
(50,507) 42,591
739,968 1,119,795
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position #H& B AR R T

31 March 2013 —E—=F=H=+—H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties

Prepaid land lease payments
Construction in progress
Trademarks

Investment in an associate
Long term rental deposits

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Trade receivables

Bills receivable — external trade

Bills receivable — intra-group trade

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Due from an associate

Held-to-maturity investments

Derivative financial assets

Cash and bank balances

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Due to an associate

Trade payables

Bills payable — external trade
Bills payable — intra-group trade

Other payables and accrued liabilities

Derivative financial liabilities
Tax payable
Interest-bearing bank borrowings

Total current liabilities
Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest-bearing bank borrowings
Deferred tax liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

Net assets
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EEREEE

BERBEE
EEFH

Notes 31 March 2013 31 March 2012

Kzt

13
14
15
16
17
18

21
22

19
20
23
24

19
25

26
23

27

27
28

—B—=F
=Z=A=+-—H
HK$°000
BETT

—E——fF
=B=+-—H
HK$000
BT T
(Restated)
AEAEET)

1 April 2011
—E——F
A—H
HK$’000
BT
(Restated)
(F1EET)

2,028,431 2,144,549 2,160,778
304,349 193,278 169,094
22,663 23,149 23,469
2,137 94,327 75,991
33,293 33,293 33,293
76,931 101,830 132,568
149,122 122,092 110,804
2,616,926 2,712,518 2,705,997
1,991,784 2,712,541 2,960,378
616,162 683,416 593,401
318,698 403,450 348,060
874,509 1,707,485 734,580
651,819 680,550 667,784
55,733 — —
12,634 23,384 —
23,528 12,661 17,006
5,151,363 4,500,318 4,232,835
9,696,230 10,723,805 9,554,044
- 9,715 45,707
818,685 1,333,828 1,400,632
35,148 93,469 89,438
874,509 1,707,485 734,580
609,508 436,288 487,575
468 4,492 8,026
175,044 246,706 306,821
3,283,460 3,193,332 3,024,535
5,796,822 7,025,315 6,097,314
3,899,408 3,698,490 3,456,730
6,516,334 6,411,008 6,162,727
225,000 412,567 563,724
120,879 112,461 77,267
345,879 525,028 640,991
6,170,455 5,885,980 5,521,736




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position #H=& AR R T

31 March 2013 —E—=F=H=+—H

Notes 31 March 2013 31 March 2012 1 April 2011
—E2—-= —E-——F Z—ZEB——&F

#aE =ZRA=+—RB =A=+-—H MA—H
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

BT T B F T BT T
(GENELE)) (Restated)
(&A1& 5T) (K15 5T)

EQUITY E=
Equity attributable to ordinary ERAREBEREE
equity holders of the Company Bz
Issued capital B a8 TR 29 68,178 68,068 68,042
Reserves 1 31(a) 5,425,934 5,168,559 4,765,373
Proposed final dividend BIRAEBRE 11 368,222 326,725 408,284
5,862,334 5,563,352 5,241,699
Non-controlling interests FERER 308,121 322,628 280,037
Total equity 1 RE 6,170,455 5,885,980 5,521,736
Poon Bun Chak Ting Kit Chung £ 3
Director Director BWE THE

BAEEMERAT —E-=FH @
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows SR ERER

Year ended 31 March 2013 BZ=—E—=F=ZA=1+—HIFE

Notes 2013 2012
Bt &t —EB—=F —E-—C-fF

HK$°000 HK$°000
BETFT BETT

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES K& FEHREFRE

Profit before tax B B4 A % T 740,014 1,128,219
Adjustments for: T
Finance costs B E A 8 54,490 37,651
Share of profit of an associate, FEALEE DN RDEF
net of tax BB 1R F (43,917) (63,956)
Interest income FE WA 5 (214,012) (181,254)
Net fair value gains on foreign exchange MESTEERITA
derivative financial instruments AREWRFE 5 (86,551) (21,478)
Net fair value gains on investment REVMEINAREBERR FHE
properties 56 (102,225) (43,412)
Depreciation e 6 370,249 344,605
Recognition of prepaid land lease FENTHEERZ
payments TR 6 680 588
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEVE -BER
plant and equipment REEE W 6 (58,000) (5,634)
Write-back of provision REFEEFRD
for slow-moving inventories 6 (9,010) (38,660)
Impairment of trade receivables FE U BR FORLE 6 161 12,336
651,879 1,169,005
Decrease in inventories FERD 729,767 286,497
Decrease/(increase) in trade BWERERRRE
and bills receivables B (35 hn) 984,821 (1,130,646)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, AATE -FER
deposits and other receivables H 1 B W BR X
WA (4 m) 21,729 (12,766)
Decrease in an amount due to ERAEE QR
an associate peae (65,448) (35,992)
(Decrease)/increase in trade EBAERRR
and bills payables ZR R, (1,406,440) 910,132
Increase/(decrease) in other payables Hih SRR
and accrued liabilities Esta&Em, G o) 173,220 (51,287)
Cash generated from operations KEBHES 1,089,528 1,134,943
Profits taxes paid 2 EHR (122,495) (186,481)
Net cash flows from operating activities REMBRERAFEE 967,033 948,462
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETHRERE
Interest received 2 WFE 214,012 181,254
Proceeds from disposal of derivative HEfMTESMI ARA
financial instruments 71,660 22,289
Dividends received from an associate EWHE ARRE 50,000 100,000
Purchases of items of property, plant and BEWE BERK
equipment REEE 13 (154,967) (231,564)
Additions to construction in progress AEERIR 16 (9,121) (17,640)
Purchases of held-to-maturity investments BERZIBNKRE (12,615) (23,384)
Redemption of held-to-maturity investments BB E ZHHIRE 23,365 —

@ TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 8B ERER

Year ended 31 March 2013 B Z=—E—=F=H=1+—HIFE

Notes 2013 2012
Bt &t —EB—=F —E-—C-fF

HK$°000 HK$°000
BETFT BETT

Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEWE - BWER

plant and equipment BREEE WA 71,604 10,625
Deposit received from disposal of items of EWHEYE BER

property, plant and equipment REZT® 17,002 —
Increase in long term rental deposits REHESZESEM (27,030) (11,288)

Increase in time and structured deposits with RETZ B =B U L
original maturity over three months when Az ERREEE

acquired FERIE M (632,268) (439,854)
Net cash flows used in investing activities REZTBHRSAEFE (388,358) (409,562)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES REZHRERE
Issue of new shares BITH R 29 11,177 2,792
Capital contribution from non-controlling FERERHE

interests 36,000 —
New interest-bearing bank borrowings KM ERITER 2,771,350 8,550,900
Repayment of interest-bearing bank EEMERTER

borrowings (2,868,789) (8,533,260)
Interest paid 2HFE (54,490) (37,651)
Dividends paid EHARE (504,085) (762,298)
Net cash flows used in financing activities METEBRS

PigEspe R (608,837) (779,517)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND ReELREEEYZ

CASH EQUIVALENTS B, Ch L) FE (30,162) (240,617)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FUzEERBESZEEY

of year 1,294,564 1,466,935
Foreign exchange adjustments INEFHE 48,939 68,246
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT REZBAZEER

END OF YEAR ReEEY 1,313,341 1,294,564
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH ReRASEEYERDN

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances ReERBITEXR 24 538,278 258,310

Non-pledged time and structured deposits RITZBE=EAREHz
with original maturity within three months ~ EEXFEH R EBMHEER

when acquired 24 775,063 1,036,254
Non-pledged time and structured deposits RETZB=EAN LR
with original maturity over three months BEATHREBEER
when acquired 24 3,838,022 3,205,754
Cash and bank balances as stated in ReRBTER
the consolidated statement of WMERAGRE B MR &
financial position 5,151,363 4,500,318
Less: Non-pledged time and structured B RETMZ A= L L3
deposits with original maturity over ZEEBERR
three months when acquired HERUEER (3,838,022) (3,205,754)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated ReRBEEEY
in the consolidated statement of MERGEEERER
cash flows 1,313,341 1,294,564

BAEEMERAT —T--FH @



Company Statement of Financial Position 2 B8 # kR &=

31 March 2013 —E—=F=H=+—H

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFTT BT T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RBLARZRE 32 846,003 389,811
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments and deposits EANRERET S 201 149
Dividends receivable WA E 570,000 950,000
Cash and bank balances RERBTEXR 24 219 148
Total current assets HRBEE 570,420 950,297
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Accrued liabilities EiraE 555 343
Total current liabilities wWERBEE 555 343
Net current assets REEE R 569,865 949,954
Total assets less current liabilities HEERABDEE 1,415,868 1,339,765
Net assets EEFRE 1,415,868 1,339,765
EQUITY E=
Issued capital 2EITRAK 29 68,178 68,068
Reserves 1 31(b) 979,468 944,972
Proposed final dividend BIRARERE 11 368,222 326,725
Total equity R R 1,415,868 1,339,765
Poon Bun Chak Ting Kit Chung BE BZE

Director Director EWE THA



2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Texwinca Holdings Limited is a limited liability company
incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office of the Company
is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda. The principal place of business of Texwinca Holdings
Limited is located at 16th Floor, Metroplaza, Tower I, 223 Hing
Fong Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following
principal activities:

3 Production, dyeing and sale of knitted fabric and yarn;

o Retailing and distribution of casual apparel and accessory;

o Provision of franchise services; and

° Provision of repair and maintenance services for motor
vehicles.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for investment
properties, certain leasehold land and buildings included in
property, plant and equipment, and derivative financial
instruments, which have been measured at fair value. These
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$")
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

2.1
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2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2013.
The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date
that such control ceases. All intra-group balances, transactions,
unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-group
transactions and dividends are eliminated on consolidation in
full.

Total comprehensive income within a subsidiary is attributed to
the non-controlling interests even if it results in a deficit
balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a
loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the
fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate.

Q TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013

2.1

B E AR B ()

mEE%E
REVERREELAQRAARAHMBEAA
(ARBIAE@M)EBEZE=ZE—=F=A=+
—BLEEZHERR -MBLARAZHH
HEDHRERQRTDEB 2 HREBEER—
BB HRGRE -MBARZEEZEANR
BHH(MAEERNSEHEZER HREA
R WEBEGREANREZZEHEL L
ERAL -EEABZ—IEH X5 &
EABRBZELECABRABREEHORN
HAEARB2ZHEH -

EANBREDE BN IFERES -

M8 DRz PR R B (3 4 K R )
AR DERRS °

MASRERAMBLR 2 EHE . AIXE
ETRRERIBNZMBARAZEE (BES
BIRERE (VEMFEERESZ ZIREER
(IR BEANRRZRFTHIAEER IR
MEWRKEZRIAE  (VFRE ZEFTR
ExARERNEEFETELEEZR
Be TR HEMEEANERER A EEE
EBODEHFIEZBEZIREEN (R
BRmE) o



2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES
The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the
first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial

HKFRS 1 Amendments

Reporting Standards — Severe
Hyperinflation and Removal of Fixed
Dates for First-time Adopters

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures — Transfers

HKFRS 7 Amendments

of Financial Assets

HKAS 12 Amendments Amendments to HKAS 12 Income Taxes
— Deferred Tax: Recovery of

Underlying Assets

Other than as further explained below regarding the impact of
amendments to HKAS 12, the adoption of the revised HKFRSs
has had no significant financial effect on these financial
statements.

The HKAS 12 Amendments clarify the determination of deferred
tax for investment property measured at fair value and
introduce a rebuttable presumption that deferred tax on
investment property measured at fair value should be
determined on the basis that its carrying amount will be
recovered through sale. Furthermore, the amendments
incorporate the requirement previously in HK(SIC)-Int 21 Income
Taxes — Recovery of Revalued Non-Depreciable Assets that
deferred tax on non-depreciable assets, measured using the
revaluation model in HKAS 16, should always be measured on a
sale basis. Prior to the adoption of the amendments, deferred
tax with respect to the Group’s investment properties was
provided on the basis that the carrying amount will be recovered
through use, and accordingly the profits tax rate had been
applied to the calculation of deferred tax arising on the
revaluation of the Group’s investment properties. Upon the
adoption of HKAS 12 Amendments, the Group has remeasured
the deferred tax relating to certain investment properties on the
presumption that the carrying amounts will be recovered

through sale.
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Notes To The Financial Statements Bf# R KMz

31 March 2013 —E—=F=H=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 22 i HEXREE225 @)

DISCLOSURES (continued)

2013

—ZE2—=

HK$’000
BETF T

Consolidated income statement forthe B Z=HA=+—HILFEH

2012

—_ 22—
HK$’000
BT T

year ended 31 March RE TR
Decrease in income tax expense FrEBEARD (16,880) (7,846)
Increase in profit for the year AN R F B 0 16,880 7,846
Increase in basic earnings per share BREREFIEM

(HK cents) B #AL) 1.239 0.576
Increase in diluted earnings per share & R #i58 % 2 1 hn

(HK cents) GE#AL) 1.233 0.571
Consolidated statement of financial REA=1+—HHES

position at 31 March B Bt K
Decrease in deferred tax liabilities EEHEEEREERE

and total non-current liabilities =RV (33,775) (16,895)
Increase in net assets and reserves EEFERFBEM 33,775 16,895

Consolidated statement of financial position RO E — H B4R & B Ak R Z%

at 1 April

Decrease in deferred tax liabilities and total FEEREEBERAER
non-current liabilities a@ERD

Increase in net assets and reserves EEFHERFEELN
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these

financial statements.

HKFRS 1 Amendments

HKFRS 7 Amendments

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11

and HKFRS 12
Amendments

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27 (2011)
Amendments

HKFRS 13

HKAS 1 Amendments

HKAS 19 (2011)

HKAS 27 (2011)

HKAS 28 (2011)

HKAS 32 Amendments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 20

Annual improvements
Project

HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7
Amendments

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption of
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards —
Government Loans?

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities?

Financial Instruments*

Consolidated Financial Statements?

Joint Arrangements?

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities?

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12 — Transition Guidance?

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (2011) — Investment Entities’

Fair Value Measurement?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of
Financial statements — Presentation of
Items of Other Comprehensive Income'

Employee Benefits?

Separate Financial Statements®

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures?

Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation — Offsetting Financial Assets

and Financial Liabilities®

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase
of a Surface Mine?

Annual Improvements 2009-2011 Cycle?

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
and HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
— Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9 and
Transition Disclosures*
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is as follows:

The HKFRS 7 Amendments require an entity to disclose
information about rights to set-off and related arrangements
(e.g., collateral agreements). The disclosures would provide users
with information that is useful in evaluating the effect of
netting arrangements on an entity’s financial position. The new
disclosures are required for all recognised financial instruments
that are set off in accordance with HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation. The disclosures also apply to
recognised financial instruments that are subject to an
enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement,
irrespective of whether they are set off in accordance with HKAS
32. The Group expects to adopt the amendments from 1 April
2013.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)
HKFRS 9 issued in November 2009 is the first part of phase 1 of a
comprehensive project to entirely replace HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. This phase focuses
on the classification and measurement of financial assets.
Instead of classifying financial assets into four categories, an
entity shall classify financial assets as subsequently measured at
either amortised cost or fair value, on the basis of both the
entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and
the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.
This aims to improve and simplify the approach for the
classification and measurement of financial assets compared
with the requirements of HKAS 39.

In November 2010, the HKICPA issued additions to HKFRS 9 to
address financial liabilities (the “Additions”) and incorporated
in HKFRS 9 the current derecognition principles of financial
instruments of HKAS 39. Most of the Additions were carried
forward unchanged from HKAS 39, while changes were made to
the measurement of financial liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss using the fair value option (“FVO"). For
these FVO liabilities, the amount of change in the fair value of a
liability that is attributable to changes in credit risk must be
presented in other comprehensive income (“OCI”). The
remainder of the change in fair value is presented in profit or
loss, unless presentation of the fair value change in respect of
the liability’s credit risk in OCl would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. However, loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts which have

been designated under the FVO are scoped out of the Additions.

HKAS 39 is aimed to be replaced by HKFRS 9 in its entirety.
Before this entire replacement, the guidance in HKAS 39 on
hedge accounting and impairment of financial assets continues
to apply. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 9 from 1 April 2015.
The Group will quantify the effect in conjunction with other
phases, when the final standard including all phases is issued.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)
HKFRS 10 establishes a single control model that applies to all
entities including special purpose entities or structured entities.
It includes a new definition of control which is used to
determine which entities are consolidated. The changes
introduced by HKFRS 10 require management of the Group to
exercise significant judgement to determine which entities are
controlled, compared with the requirements in HKAS 27 and
HK(SIC)-Int 12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities. HKFRS
10 replaces the portion of HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements that addresses the accounting for
consolidated financial statements. It also addresses the issues
raised in HK(SIC)-Int 12. Based on the preliminary analyses
performed, HKFRS 10 is not expected to have any impact on the
currently held investments of the Group.

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures and
HK(SIC)-Int 13 Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-Monetary
Contributions by Venturers. It describes the accounting for joint
arrangements with joint control. It addresses only two forms of
joint arrangements, i.e., joint operations and joint ventures, and
removes the option to account for joint ventures using
proportionate consolidation.

HKFRS 12 includes the disclosure requirements for subsidiaries,
joint arrangements, associates and structured entities previously
included in HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements, HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures and HKAS 28
Investments in Associates. It also introduces a number of new
disclosure requirements for these entities.

In July 2012, the HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 which clarify the transition guidance in
HKFRS 10 and provide further relief from full retrospective
application of these standards, limiting the requirement to
provide adjusted comparative information to only the preceding
comparative period. The amendments clarify that retrospective
adjustments are only required if the consolidation conclusion as
to which entities are controlled by the Group is different
between HKFRS 10 and HKAS 27 or HK(SIO)-Int 12 at the
beginning of the annual period in which HKFRS 10 is applied for
the first time. Furthermore, for disclosures related to
unconsolidated structured entities, the amendments will remove
the requirement to present comparative information for periods
before HKFRS 12 is first applied.

@ TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

The amendments to HKFRS 10 issued in December 2012 include
a definition of an investment entity and provide an exception to
the consolidation requirement for entities that meet the
definition of an investment entity. Investment entities are
required to account for subsidiaries at fair value through profit
or loss in accordance with HKFRS 9 rather than consolidate
them. Consequential amendments were made to HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (2011). The amendments to HKFRS 12 also set out the
disclosure requirements for investment entities. The Group
expects that these amendments will not have any impact on the
Group as the Company is not an investment entity as defined in
HKFRS 10.

Consequential amendments were made to HKAS 27 and HKAS
28 as a result of the issuance of HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS
12. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12,
HKAS 27 (2011), HKAS 28 (2011), and the subsequent
amendments to these standards issued in July and December
2012 from 1 April 2013.

HKFRS 13 provides a precise definition of fair value and a single
source of fair value measurement and disclosure requirements
for use across HKFRSs. The standard does not change the
circumstances in which the Group is required to use fair value,
but provides guidance on how fair value should be applied
where its use is already required or permitted under other
HKFRSs. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 13 prospectively
from 1 April 2013.

The HKAS 1 Amendments change the grouping of items
presented in OCI. Items that could be reclassified (or recycled) to
profit or loss at a future point in time (for example, net gain on
hedge of a net investment, exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations, net movement on cash flow hedges and
net loss or gain on available-for-sale financial assets) would be
presented separately from items which will never be reclassified
(for example, actuarial gains and losses on defined benefit plans
and revaluation of land and buildings). The amendments will
affect presentation only and have no impact on the financial
position or performance. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments from 1 April 2013.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

HKAS 19 (2011) includes a number of amendments that range
from fundamental changes to simple clarifications and re-
wording. The revised standard introduces significant changes in
the accounting for defined benefit plans including removing the
choice to defer the recognition of actuarial gains and losses.
Other changes include modifications to the timing of
recognition for termination benefits, the classification of short-
term employee benefits and disclosures of defined benefit plans.
The Group expects to adopt HKAS 19 (2011) from 1 April 2013.

The HKAS 32 Amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has
a legally enforceable right to setoff” for offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities. The amendments also clarify the
application of the offsetting criteria in HKAS 32 to settlement
systems (such as central clearing house systems) which apply
gross settlement mechanisms that are not simultaneous. The
amendments are not expected to have any impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group upon adoption
on 1 April 2014.

The Annual Improvements 2009-2011 Cycle issued in June 2012
sets out amendments to a number of HKFRSs. The Group expects
to adopt the amendments from 1 April 2013. There are separate
transitional provisions for each standard. While the adoption of
some of the amendments may result in changes in accounting
policies, none of these amendments are expected to have a
significant financial impact on the Group. Those amendments
that are expected to have a significant impact on the Group’s
policies are as follows:

(a) HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: Clarifies the
difference between voluntary additional comparative
information and the minimum required comparative
information. Generally, the minimum required

comparative period is the previous period. An entity must

include comparative information in the related notes to
the financial statements when it voluntarily provides
comparative information beyond the previous period. The
additional comparative information does not need to

contain a complete set of financial statements.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)
In addition, the amendment clarifies that the opening
statement of financial position as at the beginning of the
preceding period must be presented when an entity
changes its accounting policies; makes retrospective
restatements or makes reclassifications, and that change
has a material effect on the statement of financial
position. However, the related notes to the opening
statement of financial position as at the beginning of the
preceding period are not required to be presented.

(b)  HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation: Clarifies that
income taxes arising from distributions to equity holders
are accounted for in accordance with HKAS 12 Income
Taxes. The amendment removes existing income tax
requirements from HKAS 32 and requires entities to apply
the requirements in HKAS 12 to any income tax arising
from distributions to equity holders.

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies
the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s income
statement to the extent of dividends received and receivable.
The Company'’s investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
any impairment losses.

Associates

An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary, in which the
Group has a long term interest of generally not less than 20% of
the equity voting rights and over which it is in a position to
exercise significant influence.

The Group’s investment in an associate is stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less
any impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into line
any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist. The Group’s
share of the post-acquisition results and reserves of an associate
is included in the consolidated income statement and
consolidated reserves, respectively. Unrealised gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and its associate
is eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investment in the
associate, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Business combinations and goodwiill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of
liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition
date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair
value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial
instrument and within the scope of HKAS 39 is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value either recognised in profit or
loss or as a change to other comprehensive income. If the
contingent consideration is not within the scope of HKAS 39, it
is measured in accordance with the appropriate HKFRS.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree over
the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the
sum of this consideration and other items is lower than the fair
value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 March. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or
groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether
other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those
units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is measured based on
the relative value of the disposed operation and the portion of
the cash-generating unit retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, financial assets and investment properties) the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs to sell, and is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
income statement in the period in which it arises, unless the
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset and certain
financial assets is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to the income statement in the period in which it arises,
unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case
the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for in
accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued
asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s

family and that person:

0]

(i)

(iii)

or

(b)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is @ member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies:

0]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same

group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a); and

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than investment
properties and construction in progress, are stated at cost or
valuation less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs
of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for
its intended use. Expenditure incurred after items of property,
plant and equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the income
statement in the period in which it is incurred. In situations
where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for
a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the
asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property,
plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

The asset revaluation reserve arising from the revaluation of
property, plant and equipment is realised and transferred
directly to retained profits on a systematic basis, as the
corresponding asset is used by the Group. The amount realised
is the difference between the depreciation based on the
revalued carrying amount of the asset and the depreciation
based on the asset’s original cost. If the total of this reserve is
insufficient to cover an impairment loss, on an individual asset
basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to profit or loss. Any
subsequent revaluation surplus is credited to profit or loss to the
extent of the deficit previously charged. An annual transfer
from the asset revaluation reserve to retained profits is made
for the difference between the depreciation based on the
revalued carrying amount of an asset and the depreciation
based on the asset’s original cost. On disposal of a revalued
asset, the relevant portion of the asset revaluation reserve
realised in respect of previous valuations is transferred to
retained profits as a movement in reserves.

For a transfer from owner-occupied properties to investment
properties, the related revaluation surplus is retained in the
leasehold land and buildings revaluation reserve and remains
there until the subsequent disposal or retirement of the
property, when it is transferred from the revaluation surplus to
retained profits.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)
Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The estimated useful
lives used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings 25 years or over the remaining
lease terms, whichever is
shorter

Leasehold improvements Over the remaining lease terms

Plant and machinery 10 to 20 years

Furniture, fixtures and office 5 years
equipment
Motor vehicles and yacht 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at

each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use
or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised
in the income statement in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of
construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

24 FEEHHENBE @)

M- BERRBETE (H)
FWEZHEREDRENYE - BERR
BEE 2 AIERAFHUEREMBER
ARG EEREREE - Bk B 89 k&
ZAUBEAFHRMOT

HETHRET SEREHT2HE
FH RAPRES

HEZFEE RBT-HEEY

55 K AR 1022045

B HER 5

MAERE

AERBERE 58

i —¥% BERRBERE 2T EHBHE
ETrEZAERFEHR ZEE ZHARE
BERIERASINN  LEBFTRAR
E-NREBEE UJEAFHNFTEL AR
IPREEVBFEAERETRINEE
fEIE

CHALSHEANYE BERREFERE R
EMEERHREELRHREALHERZ
HAERTEERARKEN G FL LR
R-REERULEBR2FERABERER
ZEMHERBE 2B RHEEMERK
HRREAEEERASE =S -

EEIR
EFEIRDERRAEREAREESRES
BRBEARTIHE RAREEEZERL-E
EEIRZIRAEASENIBERE
E2WE - -BERRBER -

BAEEEERARN —E-=FRH



2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating lease for
property which would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property) held to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or for
sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties are
measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the end
of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the income statement in

the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the income statement in
the year of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties, the deemed cost of a property for subsequent
accounting is its fair value at the date of change in use. If a
property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied property
becomes an investment property, the Group accounts for such
property in accordance with the policy stated under “Property,
plant and equipment and depreciation” up to the date of
change in use, and any difference at that date between the
carrying amount and the fair value of the property is accounted
for as a revaluation in accordance with the policy stated under
“Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” above.

Trademarks

The useful lives of trademarks are assessed to be indefinite.
Trademarks with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash-
generating unit level and are not amortised. The useful life of a
trademark with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to
determine whether indefinite life assessment continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment
from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating
leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group
under operating leases are included in non-current assets, and
rentals receivable under the operating leases are credited to the
income statement on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under the
operating leases are charged to the income statement on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms. When the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and buildings elements, the
entire lease payments are included in the cost of the land and
buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and equipment.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. For fabric and yarn, cost is determined on a weighted
average basis and, for work in progress and finished goods, cost
comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. For casual apparel and accessories, cost
is determined on a weighted average basis and includes all costs
of purchases and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition. Net realisable value is
based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal or to make the sale.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its
foreign currency risk. Such derivative financial instruments are
initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets when
the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is
negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are taken directly to the income statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial investments, or as
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate. The Group determines the classification
of its financial assets at initial recognition. When financial assets
are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus
transaction cost, except in the case of financial assets recorded
at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in the income statement. The loss

arising from impairment is recognised in the income statement.

Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity are classified as held-to-maturity
investments when the Group has the positive intention and
ability to hold them to maturity. Held-to-maturity investments
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate

amortisation is included in the income statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments as defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with positive net
changes in fair value presented as other income and gains and
negative net changes in fair value presented as finance costs in
the income statement. These net fair value changes do not
include any dividends or interest earned on these financial
assets, which are recognised in accordance with the policies set
out for “Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value
through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria under HKAS 39 are satisfied.

The Group evaluates its financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (held for trading) to assess whether the intent to
sell them in the near term is still appropriate. When, in rare
circumstances, the Group is unable to trade these financial assets
due to inactive markets and management’s intent to sell them
in the foreseeable future significantly changes, the Group may
elect to reclassify them. The reclassification from financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss to loans and receivables,
available-for-sale financial assets or held-to-maturity investments
depends on the nature of the assets. This evaluation does not
affect any financial assets designated at fair value through
profit or loss using the fair value option at designation, as these
instruments cannot be reclassified after initial recognition.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as
separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the
host contracts and the host contracts are not held for trading or
designated at fair value through profit or loss. These embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in the income statement. Reassessment only occurs if
there is a change in the terms of the contract that significantly
modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of
financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an
incurred “loss event”) and that loss event has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group
of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include indications that a debtor or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability
that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation
and observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in
arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses individually whether objective evidence of impairment
exists for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence
of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset,
whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and
collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not
included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition). If a loan has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either directly or
through the use of an allowance account and the loss is
recognised in the income statement. Interest income continues
to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued
using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows
for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and
receivables together with any associated allowance are written
off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting
the allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset
or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised

when:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows

from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a “pass-through”
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained
the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
asset is recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or loans
and borrowings, as appropriate. The Group determines the
classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and
losses are recognised in the income statement when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate method amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in the income
statement.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities (continued)

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the

income statement.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active
markets is determined by reference to quoted market prices or
dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions and ask
price for short positions), without any deduction for transaction
costs. For financial instruments where there is no active market,
the fair value is determined using appropriate valuation
techniques. Such techniques include using recent arm’s length
market transactions; reference to the current market value of
another instrument which is substantially the same; a discounted
cash flow analysis; and other valuation models.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in which
the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

3 when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is
not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

3 in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and an associate, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and an associate, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the
end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Government subsidies

Government subsidies are recognised at their fair values where
there is reasonable assurance that the subsidy will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
subsidy relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and bank balances and
time deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statements of financial position, cash and
bank balances comprise cash on hand and at bank, which are
not restricted as to use.

Customer loyalty programme

The Group operates a loyalty programme in its retailing
operation which allows customers to accumulate award credits
when they purchase products from the Group.

The consideration received is allocated between the products
sold and the award credits issued, with the consideration
allocated to the award credits being equal to their fair value.
Fair value is determined by applying statistical techniques.

The fair value of the award credits issued is deferred and
recognised as revenue when the award credits are redeemed.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

(b) from the rendering of services, when the services have
been provided;

() rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease

terms;

(d) franchise and royalty income, on a time proportion basis,
over the franchise periods; and

(e) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a
separate allocation of retained profits within the equity section
of the statement of financial position, until they have been
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. When these
dividends have been approved by the shareholders and
declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s bye-laws grant the directors the
authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they
are proposed and declared.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Employee benefits

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled

transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which
they are granted. In valuing equity-settled transactions, no
account is taken of any performance conditions, other than
conditions linked to the price of the shares of the Company
(“market conditions”), if applicable.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has
expired and the Group's best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the
income statement for a period represents the movement in the
cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of
that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest,
except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is
conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are
treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market or
non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition,
an expense is recognised for any modification that increases the
total fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This
includes any award where non-vesting conditions within the
control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award,
and is designated as a replacement award on the date that it is
granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding share options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.

The Group has adopted the transitional provisions of HKFRS 2 in
respect of equity-settled awards and has applied HKFRS 2 only
to equity-settled awards granted after 7 November 2002 that
had not vested by 1 April 2005 and to those granted on or after
1 April 2005.

Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all
of its employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made based
on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to the income statement as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
overseas are required to participate in central pension schemes
operated by the local municipal governments. These subsidiaries
are required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll
costs to the central pension schemes. The contributions are
charged to the income statement as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension schemes.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs
that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the income

statement.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the
item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income

or profit or loss, respectively).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and an
associate are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollars. As at
the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of
these entities are translated into the presentation currency of
the Company at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their income statements are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates
for the year. The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive income
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the

income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for
the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making that
judgement. Investment property is a property held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group
considers whether a property generates cash flows largely
independently of the other assets held by the Group. Some
properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation and another portion that is held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions could
not be sold separately, the property is an investment property
only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.
Judgement is made on an individual property basis to determine
whether ancillary services are so significant that a property does
not qualify as an investment property.

Impairment of assets

The Group has to exercise judgement in determining whether
an asset is impaired or the event previously causing the asset
impairment no longer exists, particularly in assessing: (1)
whether an event has occurred that may affect the asset value
or such event affecting the asset value has not been in existence;
(2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported by
the net present value of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset or derecognition;
and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
preparing cash flow projections including whether these cash
flow projections are discounted using an appropriate rate.
Changing the assumptions selected by management to
determine the level of impairment, including the discount rates
or the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections,
could materially affect the net present value used in the

impairment test.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision
for income taxes worldwide. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which
such determination is made.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Impairment of trademarks

In accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets, the Group
determines whether trademarks are impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of
the cash-generating units to which the trademarks are related.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-
generating unit and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Estimation of useful lives of trademarks

The Group assessed the useful lives of previously recognised
trademarks. As a result of this assessment, the trademarks were
classified as intangible assets with indefinite useful lives. This
conclusion is supported by the fact that the Group’s trademark
legal rights are capable of being renewed indefinitely at
insignificant cost and therefore are perpetual in duration,
related to well known and long established fashion brands, and
based on future financial performance of the Group, they are
expected to generate positive cash flows indefinitely. Under
HKAS 38 Intangible Assets the Group re-evaluates the useful
lives of the trademarks each year to determine whether events
or circumstances continue to support the view of the indefinite
useful lives of the trademarks. The carrying amount of
trademarks at 31 March 2013 was HK$33,293,000 (2012:
HK$33,293,000).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

The Group considers information from a variety of sources,
including (i) by reference to current prices in an active market
for properties of a different nature, condition and location (or
subject to different leases or other contracts), adjusted to reflect
those differences; (ii) recent prices of similar properties in less
active markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes in
economic conditions since the date of the transactions that
occurred at those prices; and (iii) independent valuations.

The carrying amount of investment properties at 31 March 2013
was HK$304,349,000. The Group's investment properties that
were measured at fair value amounted to HK$193,278,000 as of
1 April 2012 (1 April 2011: HK$169,094,000). Upon the adoption
of HKAS 12 Amendments, the Group has remeasured the
deferred tax relating to certain of these investment properties
that amounted to HK$16,895,000 as of 1 April 2012 (1 April
2011: HK$9,049,000) on the presumption that the carrying
amounts will be recovered through sale.

Write-down/write-back of inventories to net realisable value
Write-down of inventories to net realisable value is made based
on the estimated net realisable value of inventories. The
assessment of the required write-down amount involves
management’s judgement and estimates. Where the actual
outcome or expectation in future is different from the original
estimate, such differences will have an impact on the carrying
amounts of the inventories and the write-down charge/write-
back amount in the period in which such estimate has been
changed. The carrying amount of inventories at 31 March 2013
was HK$1,991,784,000 (2012: HK$2,712,541,000).

Impairment allowances for trade and other receivables
Impairment allowances for trade and other receivables are
based on the assessment of the recoverability of trade and other
receivables. The identification of impairment allowances
requires management judgement and estimates. Where the
actual outcome or expectation in future is different from the
original estimate, such differences will have an impact on the
carrying values of the receivables and impairment or its reversal
in the period in which such estimate has been changed. The
carrying amount of trade and other receivables at 31 March
2013 was HK$976,080,000 (2012: HK$910,400,000).
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on their products and services and has three
reportable operating segments as follows:

(@) the production, dyeing and sale of knitted fabric and yarn
segment;

(b) the retailing and distribution of casual apparel and
accessory segment; and

() the "others” segment principally comprises the provision
of repair and maintenance services for motor vehicles, the
provision of franchise services and properties investment.

Management monitors the results of its operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance
is evaluated based on reportable segment profit, which is a
measure of adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted profit
before tax is measured consistently with the Group's profit
before tax except that interest income, finance costs and share
of profit of an associate, net of tax are excluded from such

measurement.

Segment assets exclude time deposits and an investment in an
associate as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank borrowings,
tax payable and deferred tax liabilities as these liabilities are
managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference
to the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the
then prevailing market prices.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt %3 R
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. ZEIEBEH @)
(@) The following tables present revenue, profit and certain (@) THRAAEESEZE-Z—=F=A8
asset, liability and expenditure information of the Group =+—-H\RgR=-E—=-—®H=A=+-—
for the years ended 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2012: AEFEZEBEERA - BRI R
NEE - BBERIHER:
Group &5
Production, Retailing and
dyeing and sale of distribution of casual
knitted fabric and yarn apparel and accessory Others Eliminations Consolidated
HRAARRY BREHNZ
EHRER SERDH Hitr He o
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013
S®--f -2--Ff “®@--f -2 -f -8 -f -8 -&F -8_-f -2 _-f& -8_=
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
E¥FT E¥TT  E¥Tr  E¥Tr  E¥Tm  BETn BT BRI EETT BETR
(Restated)
(#16aT7)
Segment revenue: FERA:
Sales to external EFHREF
customers 5,460,299 6,976,171 5,768,404 6,766,420 22,140 23,236 - — 11,250,843 13,765,827
Intersegment sales PEEZHE - — — — 7,910 5,200 (7,910 (5,200) - —
Other revenue Hg A 110,170 55,076 66,061 41,289 131,326 68,820 (3,464) (3,803) 304,093 161,382
Total At 5,570,469 7,031,247 5,834,465 6,807,709 161,376 97,256 (11,374) (9,003) 11,554,936 13,927,209
Segment results PEEE 545,882 691,749 (143,921) 157,164 134,614 71,747 - — 536,575 920,660
Interest income FEKA 214,012 181,254
Finance costs HBER (54,490) (37,651)
Share of profit of an EEEARDER
associate, net of tax BE%EE 43,917 63,956
Profit before tax BB AR R 740,014 1,128,219
Income tax expense BE (59,251)  (161,560)
Profit for the year REERR 680,763 966,659
Assets and liabilities: HERAR:
Segment assets PEEE 5,991,988 7,321,302 2,304,650 2,694,515 356,092 246,797  (1,029,590) (1,170,129) 7,623,140 9,092,485
Investment in an associate REENAZRE 76,931 101,830
Unallocated assets AABREE 4,613,085 4,242,008
Total assets BEE 12,313,156 13,436,323
Segment liabilities PEEE 1565777 2,746,174 1,443,054 1,729,985 91,754 75925  (762,267)  (966,807) 2,338,318 3,585,277
Unallocated liabilities AABREE 3,804,383 3,965,066
Total liabilities BERE 6,142,701 7,550,343
Other segment information: ~ Hft 2 &K :
Depreciation and TEREH
amortisation 219,229 224,302 150,050 119,112 1,650 1,779 - . 370,929 345,193
Capital expenditure EEN S 45,107 57,542 118,975 191,643 6 19 — — 164,088 249,204
Write-back of provision for ~ RAEFEEERD
slow-moving inventories (17,100) — 8,072 (38,711) 18 51 — — (9,010) (38,660)
Impairment of R TR E
trade receivables - - 161 12,336 — - - — 161 12,336
Net fair value gains on RENEDLERS
investment properties — — — — 102,225 43,412 — — 102,225 43,412
sxexmanca —s-=5% (@)
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
(b)

4,
Geographical information

The following table presents geographical revenue and
non-current asset information of the Group for the years
ended 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2012:

Group

USA
By
2013

Mainland China
HE KK

2013

-g2-=%

HKS$'000

BYFR

Japan

RS

2013
—E-=f
HKS$'000
VL ad

2012
—2--F
HK$000
BETT

2012
—2--F
HK$000
BETR

212
i

HK$'000
EETR

2013
—2-=f
HKS$'000
E¥TT

—e -

—E-Z

—2-=f
HKS$'000
E¥TT

Hong Kong
EE

EESRER@

(b) EEHE
TRAAEEBE-_T-—=F=7
E+t-HR=F-=-F=A=+-—
ALEEEZHHBARFABDEE
B

4.

£=E

Consolidated
He E35)
2013 2012 2013 2012
ZE-=f “%--F -B-=fF “Z--f%
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
BRTR ERTn EETT EETT

Others Eliminations
4]

2013
-g-=%
HKS$'000
AYFR

2012
—g--F
HK$000
BETT

2012
—E--§
HK$:000
BT

(i) Revenue from i) HNREF
external customers I& A
Segment revenue: AEUA:
Sales to external EFNR
customers BF 395591 5096378 518655 6132924 704762 62127 612016 74775 796918 1,167,502 - 11250843 13,765,827
(ii) Non-currentassets: (i) ¥ RBEE:

Non-current assets FRBEE - — 2,056,153 2,255,986 - — TEET  S0STT 9585 109949  (417.801)  (366,086) 2,467,804 2,590,426
The Group's geographical revenue and non-current assets AEBEBBRARFRBEEER
information, excluding long term rental deposits, are (TERRBESEZEE) IS HIRE
based on the locations of the markets and assets, MEREEZFEMDSE -
respectively.

(c) Information about major customers 0 FEEFzEHR

No single external customer (2012: nil) contributes more
than 10% to the Group’s revenue during the year.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013

rER BEE-HIREF(ZF -
TECENRAGREBRHERA
10% 3 ko



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf % 3RR M5

31 March 2013 —E—=F=H=+—H

WA - AW AR Y&

WA RAFEEERE BNREER
ESNNAZHERTTE  FRURS
WEBEMSTEERERNBA -

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5.
Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, represents the net
invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns and
trade discounts; the value of services rendered and franchise

and royalty income.

WA EARKSEDFWT :

An analysis of the revenue, other income and gains is as follows:

Group
£H
2013 2012
—E—= —E-——-F
HK$°000 HK$’000
BYT T B F T
Revenue: WA
Sale of goods HEEM 11,134,765 13,631,922
Rendering of services 12 R 107,698 127,882
Franchise and royalty income BHKERERNEA 8,380 6,023
11,250,843 13,765,827
Other income and gains: Hl AR W :
Interest income FE WA 214,012 181,254
Net fair value gains on foreign SNESTESRIA
exchange derivative financial AREWREFE
instruments (note 23) (Kta£23) 86,551 21,478
Gross rental income on investment REMERS W AETE
properties 17,907 18,344
Compensation received from HEFRBELLL
landlords for early termination HOMES
of leasing agreements = — 8,390
Compensation from suppliers for MAEESHER
defective goods BE(E 14,254 13,780
Net fair value gains on investment REMELDARBEWE FHE
properties (note 14) (Htat14) 102,225 43,412
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEM¥ - HMERRBIER
plant and equipment Uk &= 58,000 5,634
Scrap sales BHEHEE — 2,211
Government subsidies IS 6 B R — 17,430
Sundry income ME A 25,156 30,703
518,105 342,636
sxexmansa —s-=5% (@
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. BRBADZR
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ REBZBRHBRADEMNES B (L) :
(crediting):
Group
£H
2013 2012
—E-=F ZEBE-——fF
HK$°000 HK$’000
EBETFT B FT
Cost of inventories sold* EEEYWZ KA 7,777,615 9,691,759
Depreciation e 13 370,249 344,605
Recognition of prepaid land lease FENLEERER
payments 15 680 588

Employee benefit expenses, including {EEEANEX BFEEEN

directors’ and senior management’s EREBEAEME
remuneration (note 7): (KraF7) -
Wages, salaries and other IE-%FER
allowances H )£ Ak 1,556,344 1,675,576
Retirement benefit scheme BIKTEFIGH B GERR
contributions 9,809 10,148
1,566,153 1,685,724
Minimum lease payments under KEHET 2R
operating leases in respect of land EFREAS
and buildings ZH 760,064 755,613
Contingent rents under operating leases ZE&HE T 2 HAEE 598,035 684,774
Minimum lease payments under REHETZHBER
operating leases in respect of plant EHeERES
and machinery BH 1,264 8,292
Auditors’ remuneration ZEETE & 2,954 2,876
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEW% - BERRHEERD W
plant and equipment (58,000) (5,634)
Net foreign exchange gains, excluding [E X% 24 T 8%
net fair value gain on foreign NETESBMIE
exchange derivative financial AREWREFHE
instruments (9,253) (113,041)
Gross rental income on investment BREWMEHRSKA
properties g (17,907) (18,344)
Less: Outgoings WX 1,687 1,209
Net rental income HEeWAFE (16,220) (17,135)
Write-back of provision for RBEFEEERE
slow-moving inventories (9,010) (38,660)
Net fair value gains on investment REWELARBEWRSFE
properties 14 (102,225) (43,412)
Impairment of trade receivables FE UK BR SR E 22 161 12,336

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued) 6. BRBAEF @)

# Cost of inventories sold includes HK$597,260,000 (2012: # EEEYZH AP EBEBEHE T AL - #T
HK$619,742,000) of staff costs, depreciation, minimum lease E KEHETZREHSEARRERFE
payments under operating leases and write-back of provision for JEE 5 134 [0] B #5597,260000T (= FE——4F : B
slow-moving inventories which are also included in the respective #6197420005T ) TN £ & BB Y4B BB
total amounts disclosed above for each of these types of expenses. HE o

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S 7. EZ=ZNSHEEAEMLERAN

REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID BEFEMES

EMPLOYEES

Directors’ remuneration EEME

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the BREBMRXAESFLLTHRAREBLATNESE
Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange and Section 161 of the Hong 161%  AFEESHE2IHENT ¢

Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

Group
-4
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
Fees: WwWE
Executive directors HITES 50 50
Independent non-executive directors  BY EHITEE 1,035 990
1,085 1,040
Other emoluments: H < :
Executive directors: HITEE :
Salaries, allowances and benefits e FEMK
in kind FREEF 38,311 36,691
Performance related bonuses* RIEHHEA* 49,770 63,426
Compensation for non-competition TEBRBEREN
undertaking wHE — 4,960
Retirement benefit scheme RIRERIG 2
contributions # 73 71
88,154 105,148
89,239 106,188
* The executive directors of the Company are entitled to * ARBHITEFEFETRBL LA EERED
discretionary performance payments not exceeding a certain B ERMLGEFINE T B OFEIERBES
percentage of the profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of FKBHHTEAL o

the Company.

BAEEMERAT —E-=FH @
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7. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S 7. §$$ﬂ%‘§&“éﬁk;§ﬂ$&£ﬁ
REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID EaYymES &
EMPLOYEES (continued)
Directors’ remuneration (continued) EEME (&)
(a)  Independent non-executive directors (a) BUFHTEE
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors RENEXNTHEIFATESZ
during the year were as follows: BEWMT

2013 2012

—E—= —E——F

HK$’000 HK$000

B FT BB FT

Au Son Yiu E LR 345 330
Cheng Shu Wing SR A8t 28 345 330
Law Brian Chung Nin EhE 345 330
1,035 990

RERN UE(CE--F 8
VP TESNHMME -

K-

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year

(2012: nil).
(b)  Executive directors (b) BITEE
Salaries, Retirement Compensation
allowances Performance benefit for non-
and benefits related scheme  competition Total
Fees in kind bonuses contributions  undertaking remuneration
e ORER REHH BIER  TERBAR
e  FRLEAN FEAL sHEIHER R [kt
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EWTT EWTFT EMTFT BT BT BETT
2013 —E—=&
Poon Bun Chak BWE 10 13,323 27,830 15 — 41,178
Poon Kei Chak EEE 10 9,000 5,975 15 — 15,000
Poon Kai Chak BEE
(resigned on (R=F—=ZF
1 May 2013) HA— HAEE) 10 6,585 6,555 15 — 13,165
Ting Kit Chung THE 10 6,373 6,165 14 — 12,562
Poon Ho Wa EEE 10 3,030 3,245 14 — 6,299
50 38,311 49,770 73 — 88,204
2012 g
Poon Bun Chak B E 10 12,613 34,618 13 — 47,254
Poon Kei Chak EEE 10 8,784 8,417 13 — 17,224
Poon Kwan Chak BE
(resigned on 1 April  (R=ZZF——£F
2011) MA— HEHE) - — — — 4,960 4,960
Poon Kai Chak EBEE 10 6,239 8,700 13 — 14,962
Ting Kit Chung T’@FE\ 10 6,213 8,390 20 — 14,633
Poon Ho Wa BEE
(appointed on (R=F——1F
1 April 2011) mA—A
BEE) 10 2,842 3,301 12 — 6,165
50 36,691 63,426 71 4,960 105,198

There was no arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt %3 R

31 March 2013 —E—=F=H=+—H

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S 7. EENSHAEEBEAEMERAEN

REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID BEaEMES @)

EMPLOYEES (continued)

Senior management’s remuneration EREBAEHS

Senior management’s remuneration for the year were within RKEESREEAENESERTHEER :

the following bands:

2013 2012
=l =08 —E-——F

Number of Number of
individuals individuals

HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 78 54,000,001 T & 78 #£ 4,500,000 7T 1 1
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 753,500,001 7T £ /& # 4,000,000 7T 2 —
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 78 %5 3,000,001 7T £ 78 # 3,500,000 T — 2
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 78 52,500,001 T & 78 #£ 3,000,000 7T 1 —
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 752,000,001 7T £ /& # 2,500,000 7T — 1
Five highest paid employees UGBS FHNES
The five highest paid individuals employed by the Group during INAEERSTFMATIRERZAE
the year were all directors, details of whose remuneration are = HEWHACERULENIESIE ]
set out in the “Directors’ remuneration” above. A e
FINANCE COSTS 8. HKER

Group
]
2013 2012

—E—= —E—_—F
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T B F T

Interest on bank loans and overdrafts ZERAFRAEZILEFEMRITER
wholly repayable within five years EEXZFE 54,490 37,651

BAEEEERARN —E-=FRH
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31 March 2013 —E—=F=H=+—H

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. BiIE
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% EEBFNEFRCEEARET BRI 2 45T
(2012: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in FER B S LU ER165% (= F — —F :
Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits assessable 16.5%) RIBEHF - T HM BB HERFE
elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in ME DREBEASEERCEMER LR
the jurisdictions in which the Group operates. BZzHIHETE-
2013 2012
=l =08 —E-——F
HK$'000 HK$°000
HB T T BEFT
(Restated)
(B 155T)
Group: £8
Hong Kong and mainland China taxes: % & Bl K pE R IE ¢
Current year provision RNEEEE 50,397 124,621
Under-provision in prior years EFERBTR 107 1,745
Deferred tax (note 28) IE FE B 18 (ffEE 28) 8,418 35,194
Elsewhere tax: Hihh @R IE :
Current year provision REEEE 329 —
Tax charge for the year REERE 59,251 161,560
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10.

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf % 3RR M5

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax using the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the
Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at

the effective tax rate are as follows:

Profit before tax R B4 A% A
Tax at the domestic tax rates RERNERAEER

applicable to profits in the

jurisdictions concerned HiE
Adjustments in respect of currenttax B EENEHIBIE
of previous years I
Profits attributable to an associate FEAL B D =R A
Income not subject to tax BAEHHBHZBWA
Expenses not deductible for tax TAEHENR2ER

Effect of withholding tax at 10% on
the distributable profits of the

B2 BB R EN

Group's PRC subsidiaries (note 28) (KtaF28)

Unrecognised deferred tax assets on REEBBEBZRBERELHE
tax losses BE

Tax losses utilised from previous EEABTENE2FHIE
periods B8

Others Hith

Tax charge for the year REEBIE

The share of tax attributable to an associate amounting to
HK$14,506,000 (2012: HK$16,973,000) is included in “Share of
profit of an associate, net of tax” in the consolidated income
statement.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2013 includes a
profit of HK$569,011,000 (2012: HK$943,747,000) which has
been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company
(note 31(b)).

10.

31 March 2013 —E—=F=H=+—H

BE @)
BEAAQREREMBARDFERDEHE
ZRBARR L EEREHE 2B EH
YRAFEREEREREASOT

A AN 55 [ o B B U Y R AJ R 0 Ok
B 10%BHRBNZE

Group
4

2013 2012
—E-—=F —_E—_—F
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT B FT
(Restated)

(&AL ET)

740,014 1,128,219
93,492 138,142
107 1,745
(9,640) (13,353)
(101,912) (45,676)
24,576 48,015
8,479 35,867
45,475 997
(3,126) (5,775)
1,800 1,598
59,251 161,560

FE AL B & A B B 18 B 78 5 14,506,000 T (=
T — ZfF : #B%16,973,000T) EFALZE
MBEERZIEEBEEDTEN RRET
o

RAREBEREEMBEEEMGRER

BE-_Z-—=Ff=A=+—-BLFE 5
AXRARAZHBERERAZEAQAAEBER
FEEELERE T A B%569,011,0007T
(ZZ — ZF: #B1943,747,000 T ) (K 5%
31(b)) °

BAEEEERARN —E-=FRH



Notes To The Financial Statements Bt T Kzt

31 March 2013 —&—=F=H=+—H

11. DIVIDENDS

1.

g}

Interim of HK13.0 cents REE R B 13.010
(2012: HK26.0 cents) per share (ZZ——F : B¥26.01L)
Proposed final of HK27.0 cents R RE SR B 27.010
(2012: HK24.0 cents) per share (ZZ2— =5 BE24.010)

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming

annual general meeting.

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
The basic and diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31
March 2013 and 31 March 2012 have been calculated as follows:

(a) Basic earnings per share
The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on
the profit for that year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during that year.

(b) Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share for the
years ended 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2012 is based on
the profit for that year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company. The weighted average number
of ordinary shares used in the calculation is the number of
ordinary shares in issue during that year, as used in the
basic earnings per share calculation, and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares assumed to have been
issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise of all
share options into ordinary shares during that year.

@ TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013
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2013 2012
—B-=f —E--#
HKS$°000 HK$°000
BETT BEFT
177,360 354,014
368,222 326,725
545,582 680,739

A BB 2 R B IR B A 4R A AL RS
BSETHWREBEAS LA -

BEALCRAEERERMEESR

a7

—E-=F=ZB=t+—-HRZE-—ZF=
B=1t—RALFEZEARBMEEZER
BRTEMOT :

(a)

(b)

EXBRER

EXAGREBANDREARALEERS
FEEREZFERNRERZFA
CRTEERZMEFHIREFE -

BEEERET

BE2_Z-=F=A=+—-HARk=
E-—_F=A=+—HIEFENHE
HEEBRBADNDRALAAEBEESR
FEEEMZEEGANTE - AR
HEFRCRTEBERZMNETY
BREDARHNEELRSREFANZR
B RERIERZERNUNEETER
EEREAZTBRNWMEFIIRE -



Notes to the Financial Statements Bt %3 R

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
(continued)

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are
based on the followings:

12

Earnings P

Profit attributable to ordinary AL EERMEE
equity holders of the Company, BEF - AESE
used in the basic earnings per BEXGREF

share calculation

Shares IR 17

Weighted average number of sharesin F{EstEERGRER 2
issue during the year used in the FREBTRMDME
basic earnings per share calculation TR E

Effect of dilution — weighted average ## 2 & MEFHLER
number of ordinary shares: RE:
Share options B

Weighted average number of sharesin F{EFE#BEEEREBEIN
issue during the year used in the FREBTRMOMEFY
diluted earnings per share calculation R &

12.

31 March 2013 —E—=F=H=+—H

BEALCAEREEEMEESR
B @)

EXARBER2BRBAFENT

2012
—E—_—F
HK$’000

B FT
(Restated)
(B 155T)

2013
—E—=F
HK$°000

EETFT

734,229 938,186

Number of shares

RHEE
2013

=5

1,362,593,035 1,361,164,738
5,934,395 12,208,245
1,368,527,430 1,373,372,983

BAEEEERARN —E-=FRH
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31 March 2013 —E—=F=H=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. V¥ BERRKRE
Group &£5

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Motor
land and Leasehold Plant and office  vehicles and

buildings improvements machinery equipment yacht Total

HELH HERT BE &A - RER HE
5L S 3 R#H  BAERE R a8
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETFTT BETRT BETT BETT BETT

31 March 2013 —E-—=fF
=B=+-—H
At 1 April 2012: R-ZZB—ZF
A—B:
Cost or valuation ARG E 1,418,744 655,812 2,967,011 269,601 94,134 5,405,302
Accumulated depreciation  ZFHITE (522,082) (436,450) (2,000,368) (224,532) (77,321) (3,260,753)
Net carrying amount REFE 896,662 219,362 966,643 45,069 16,813 2,144,549
At 1 April 2012, net of R=-TB—=F
accumulated depreciation A—8-
2 kR R
e 896,662 219,362 966,643 45,069 16,813 2,144,549
Additions »nE — 113,303 26,990 9,697 4,977 154,967
Disposals e (10,710) (1,937) — (101) (856) (13,604)
Depreciation provided FRITEERE
during the year (56,055) (127,620) (161,728) (16,670) (8,176) (370,249)
Transfer from construction £ Ti28 A
in progress (note 16) (K&t 16) 35,428 — 64,959 224 — 100,611
Surplus on revaluation EHBH 1,415 — — — — 1,415
Transfer to investment EEREYE
properties (note 14) (BtaF14) (9,500) — — — - (9,500)
Foreign exchange INE A
adjustments 9,638 (3,563) 12,667 1,338 162 20,242

At31March 2013, netof RZ-ZB—=%

accumulated depreciation =HA=+—H

2 kR R

e 866,878 199,545 909,531 39,557 12,920 2,028,431

At 31 March 2013; R-Z2—Z=F

=ZA=+-—-8:
Cost or valuation AL E 1,448,428 755,487 3,099,736 275,924 97,585 5,677,160
Accumulated depreciation  ZFHITE (581,550) (555,942) (2,190,205) (236,367) (84,665) (3,648,729)
Net carrying amount REFEE 866,878 199,545 909,531 39,557 12,920 2,028,431

Analysis of cost or valuation: f 78 2 {& {E 2 47 :

At cost 2% 1,434,826 755,487 3,099,736 275,924 97,585 5,663,558
At 31 March 1992 R—hh=—F
valuation =B=+-—H
fh{E 13,602 — — — — 13,602
1,448,428 755,487 3,099,736 275,924 97,585 5,677,160
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf % 3RR M5
31 March 2013 —&—=F=A=+—H

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 13. ¥ BERRE@
Group £H

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Motor
land and Leasehold Plant and office  vehicles and

buildings improvements machinery equipment yacht Total

HELH HERT BE &A - RER HE
5L S 3 R#H  BAERE Rk a8
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETFTT BETRT BETT BETT BETT

31 March 2012 —E-——F
=A=+-8
At 1 April 2011: R=Z——F
A—B:
Cost or valuation ARG E 1,357,420 494,375 2,822,202 238,928 98,826 5,011,751
Accumulated depreciation  ZFHITE (455,303) (352,694) (1,763,011) (203,536) (76,429) (2,850,973)
Net carrying amount REFE 902,117 141,681 1,059,191 35,392 22,397 2,160,778
At 1 April 2011, net of R-TE——F
accumulated depreciation A—8-
2 kR R
e 902,117 141,681 1,059,191 35,392 22,397 2,160,778
Additions »nE — 167,077 31,616 27,692 5179 231,564
Disposals e (3.154) (84) — (662) (1,091) (4,991)
Depreciation provided FRITEERE
during the year (54,502) (94,919) (166,240) (18,696) (10,248) (344,605)
Transfer from construction £ Ti28 A
in progress (note 16) (KtsE16) — — 2,557 — — 2,557
Surplus on revaluation EHEREH 3,955 — — — - 3,955
Transfer to investment EEREYE
properties (note 14) (Bt 14) (5,500) — — — — (5,500)
Transfer from investment R E Y EE A
properties (note 14) (Bt 14) 24,450 — — — — 24,450
Foreign exchange INEE A
adjustments 29,296 5,607 39,519 1,343 576 76,341

At 31 March 2012, net of R-ZEBE—Z—F

accumulated depreciation =H=+—H
2R RS
e 896,662 219,362 966,643 45,069 16,813 2,144,549
At 31 March 2012: R-EB-——F
=A=+-—-8:
Cost or valuation AL E 1,418,744 655,812 2,967,011 269,601 94,134 5,405,302
Accumulated depreciation ~ REHITE (522,082) (436,450)  (2,000,368) (224,532) (77,321) (3,260,753)
Net carrying amount IR FE 896,662 219,362 966,643 45,069 16,813 2,144,549

Analysis of cost or valuation: f 78 2 {& {E 2 47 :

At cost 2% 1,405,142 655,812 2,967,011 269,601 94,134 5,391,700
At 31 March 1992 R—hh=—F
valuation =B=+-—H
HE 13,602 — — — — 13,602
1,418,744 655,812 2,967,011 269,601 94,134 5,405,302

BAEEMERAT —E-=FH @



Notes To The Financial Statements Bt T Kzt
31 March 2013 —&—=F=HA=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 13. ¥ BERRE@E

An analysis of the leasehold land and buildings is as follows:

1992
Professional
valuation
—hh=%F
HXME
HK$'000
B FT

D&
HK$°000
BETT

Medium term leasehold {7 A& 8 = o 5

HELHREBFOFMT :

1992
Professional
valuation Total
—hh=%F
HXME
HK$'000

BETFT

Total

A
= A

HK$°000
BETFT

&% AR
HK$°000
BETT

HK$°000
BETT

land and buildings HELHRESF
situated in Hong Kong 13,602 111,367 124,969 13,602 119,517 133,119
Medium term leasehold A& B LSz
land and buildings FHEAELHR
situated outside gF
Hong Kong — 1,323,459 1,323,459 — 1,285,625 1,285,625
13,602 1,434,826 1,448,428 13,602 1,405,142 1,418,744

During the year, certain leasehold land and buildings of the
Group were transferred to investment properties since the date
of change in use. Such leasehold land and buildings were
revalued at the date of change in use by directors at an
aggregate open market value of HK$9,500,000 based on their
existing use. A revaluation surplus of HK$1,415,000 resulting
from the above valuation has been credited to asset revaluation
reserve.

Certain medium term leasehold land and buildings were
revalued in 1992 by independent professionally qualified
valuers. Since 1993, no further revaluation of the Group’s
leasehold land and buildings had been carried out as the Group
has relied upon the exemption granted under the transitional
provisions in paragraph 80A of HKAS 16 Property, Plant and
Equipment, from the requirement to carry out future
revaluations of its property, plant and equipment which were
stated at valuation at that time. Had such leasehold land and
buildings been carried at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation, their carrying amounts would have been
approximately HK$4,895,000 (2012: HK$5,331,000).
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7 #9,500,000T - A LME-FEE 2 EMELR
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf % 3RR M5

31 March 2013 —E—=F=H=+—H

14. REWXE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Carrying amount at beginning of year A E{EEE

Net gain from fair value adjustments A R {E AR Uk F5E
(note 5, 6) (K15E5, 6)

Transfer from property, plant and BEVE BERZEEA
equipment (note 13) (FHEE13)

Transfer to property, plant and

equipment (note 13) (KraE13)
Foreign exchange adjustments INEEE
Carrying amount at end of year RERKREE

The investment properties with carrying value of
HK$254,500,000 and HK$49,849,000 are situated in Hong Kong
and Taiwan, respectively. All investment properties are held
under medium term leases. The investment properties with
carrying value of HK$194,500,000 were revalued on 31 March
2013 by the directors with reference to the current prices of
similar properties in an active market at nearby locations
adjusted to reflect those differences; as well as recent prices of
similar properties in less active markets, with adjustments to
reflect any changes in economic conditions since the date of the
transactions that occurred at those prices. The investment
properties with carrying value of HK$49,849,000 and
HK$60,000,000 were revalued on 31 March 2013 by Colliers
International and Chung, Chan & Associates respectively,
independent professionally qualified valuers, on an open
market, existing use basis. The investment properties are leased
to third parties under operating leases, further summary details
of which are included in note 35(a) to the financial statements.

BEYX BERRE

Group
%=

2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETF T BETF T
193,278 169,094
102,225 43,412
9,500 5,500

— (24,450)

(654) (278)
304,349 193,278

BR [ {8 & 78 ¥ 254,500,000 7T 2 78 # 49,849,000 7t
NEBRENEDIRNUNREBREEZE - RENEED
RPEBENER - BREE 5% % 194,500,000 7T 2
REYMEDHESSZEBAERMSPHEHE
BUYWENBER-ZE—==ZA=+—-814%
HEGMURBMEZER  ARUBRETIRNTES
PRIEMENRERRE  F @A URREMA
AR AHEREERNRE - RZE—=F=
B=+—H " [REEHB%49,849,000T & /B #
60,000,000 TR ENE D IHEETEERZ
BUAEMS HERTHEGEMBKESEMK
HET RARTSESRBEAREEETE MG
REMEDULERNBTFE=E > FHERSH
W BT &M EE35() ©

BAkEEEERAR —Z-=ZFH
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31 March 2013 —E—=F=H=+—H

15. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 15. A L#HHEER
Group
£H
2013 2012
—E—= —ET-—_—F
HK$'000 HK$000
B F T B F T

Carrying amount at beginning of year REXREE 23,829 24,142
Recognised during the year (note 6) FRNER (HEF6) (680) (588)
Foreign exchange adjustments INEFRE 196 275
Carrying amount at end of year RERKREE 23,345 23,829
Current portion included in RENE D BIFATEAARE

prepayments, deposits and AeREMEKERRRA

other receivables (682) (680)
Non-current portion TR EN D 22,663 23,149

The above leasehold lands are held under medium term leases UEZHET Y UDBHBALNTERLR
and are situated outside Hong Kong. BEBLLIME T o
16. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 16. HEIR
Group
£8
2013 2012
—E—-=F —E——fF
HK$'000 HK$°000
BT T BET T

At beginning of year REA 94,327 75,991
Additions wNE 9,121 17,640
Transfer to property, plant and EHEYE BMERSRBMTI3)

equipment (note 13) (100,611) (2,557)
Foreign exchange adjustments INE FA R (700) 3,253
At end of year RER 2,137 94,327
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf# 3R R KMz

31 March 2013 —E—=F=H=+—H

17. TRADEMARKS 17. BE
Group
&=
2013 2012
—E—= —ET-—_—F
HK$000 HK$°000
BET T B F T
Cost and carrying amount RERRARKREE
at end of year 33,293 33,293
18. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 18. RE QR ZRE
Group
£H
2013 2012
—8-= —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
B FT B F T
Share of net assets EiLEEFRE 76,931 101,830
Particulars of the associate are as follows: BMEATZENNT :

Percentage of

ownership
Place of interest
Particulars of incorporation and attributable to
issued shares operations the Group Principal activity
2#1T = 8 BY 3 B rEEEMN
R 43 #Y & ¥l 2 B HEAHERE TEXHK
Megawell Industrial Ordinary shares of Hong Kong/Mainland 50 Manufacture of
Limited (“Megawell”) HK$1 each in China and Vietnam garments
nominal value
BESHBAFRAA BREEB¥ 1T BB/ PEKKE 50 B{IREE
(TE=ED ZER 5§ in=)

BAEEEERARN —E-=FRH
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31 March 2013 —E—=F=H=+—H

18.

19.

20.

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial

information of Megawell extracted from its financial statements:

Assets BE
Liabilities afE
Revenues A
Profit after tax RR B 1% 0% A

DUE FROM/TO AN ASSOCIATE
The amount due from/to an associate is unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on agreed credit terms.

HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS

Listed investments, at amortised cost
Unlisted investments,
at amortised cost

At 31 March 2013, the investments have an aggregate nominal
value of HK$12,498,000 (2012:HK$23,135,000), and bear interest
at 4.75% (2012: ranging from 3.45% to 4.00%) per annum. The
amortised cost of the held-to-maturity investments has been
computed as the amount initially recognised minus principal
repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using
the effective interest rate method of any difference between
the initially recognised amount and the maturity amount. At the
end of the reporting period, the fair values of the held-to-
maturity investments were not materially different from their
carrying amounts.

None of the held-to-maturity investments were either past due
or impaired. The financial assets included in held-to-maturity
investments related to receivables for which there was no recent
history of default.
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18.

19.

20.

EEmHERE  REBERE
FEMHERE
BHEHERAE

REBE QAR ZRE @)
TRHEIFHEEEVERR 2V HERE
=z,

2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
HK$’000 HK$000
BT T BETF T
508,312 544,118
337,755 331,420
1,087,331 1,368,572
77,795 132,145
PEWL, 13 Bt & 1 ]
W/ HBEARRRDERE  BF S
RERBTRAER -
BFEIHNKRE
Group
-3
2013 2012
==2—= —E-——fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETFT BT T
— 23,384
12,634 —
12,634 23,384

RZBE-=ZF=A=+—-HB Z%ZBEWNE
STEE S B #12,498,000 T (=8 — — & :
B M23,135000T) * FERABLTS%(ZF
—ZHF N F345%F4.00%) c BEFH
MWIREZEHEREANAEDRDBER
HWEERECEENAS BMESRE
FRAEBRAERLHRERSEHEIEGA
SHECEENRTHHEETE - RNBREH
ROBEIANBRENAOAERAKREE
WERERAEER -

ZEZIANREMBEAHNARNE - BE
REZIANRETNEREERILEE
FRESRE WK ARS -
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HH

21. INVENTORIES

Raw materials R
Work in progress TR
Finished goods SRR

22. TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables FE W BR X
Impairment DR

Payment terms of the Group’s customers mainly range from
“cash before delivery” to “90 days from the date of invoice”. A
significant portion of the customers trade with the Group under
documentary credit terms. The Group seeks to maintain strict
credit control on its outstanding receivables and has a policy to
manage its credit risk. Since the Group’s trade receivables relate
to a large number of customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade receivable
balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

Group
S

2013 2012

—E—= —E—_—F

HK$°000 HK$'000

B FT BETF T

740,234 970,926

46,030 84,705

1,205,520 1,656,910

1,991,784 2,712,541

22. BEWERN
Group
S

2013 2012

—E—=F —E——F
HK$°000 HK$’000

B FT BT T

628,672 695,765
(12,510) (12,349)

616,162 683,416

AEBEFIFERMBIARREIE[RE
RBH90KR] H BB XM ZUE AR
HBAKEETRZ AEEHEWHERER
-EREEEFNENEEEERR- A
REASERURAECERSZEFS Bl
BEANFEETRAB AEELEFHE
FEWERRESFEEAERRIAMREA
ERZRE - BUIRRBFEWE -
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Notes To The Financial Statements Bf# R KMz

31 March 2013 —E—=F=H=+—H

22. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)
An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of
impairment of HK$12,510,000 (2012: HK$12,349,000), is as
follows:

Within 90 days 90 A &
Over 90 days 90H M Lt

Movements in the provision for impairment of trade receivables
are as follows:

At beginning of year READ

Impairment of trade receivables FE W BR FRORLE
(note 6) (Ki&te6)

At end of year RER

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade
receivables is a provision for individually impaired trade
receivables of HK$12,510,000 (2012: HK$12,349,000) with a
carrying amount of HK$12,510,000 (2012: HK$12,349,000). The
individually impaired trade receivables relate to customers that
were in default or delinquency in payments. The Group does not
hold any collateral or credit enhancements over these balances.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013

22. FEWRR (&)
RBEHR REZAHRNKREE
7B #12,510000t( = & — — F: B ¥
12,349,000 7T ) % =2 F& IR BR X BR B2 2 A7 40

T
Group
-3
2013 2012
—E-=fF —E-——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
B F T B FT
584,792 659,076
31,370 24,340
616,162 683,416

FEWRSRERENZBHNT

Group
£=

2013 2012
—ZE—= —E—_—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BETF T
12,349 13
161 12,336
12,510 12,349

ELAEWERRREREPEEEENCHE
FEURBR BB 8 512,510,000 T (=B ——F : 8
#512,349,0007T) ' ZLEWERANWIREBEAEY
12,510,000t (= Z — — 5 : % 12,349,0007T) °
ZEERERERKRERER IR TEBITARRIER
WEF AEBYENZEHREFEEMRITFR
HEMBAEANRE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt %3 R

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not

considered to be impaired is as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired WHBBATEERE
Within 90 days past due BHI90A A
Over 90 days past due BHI90 A UL £

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
large number of diversified customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of customers that have a good payment record with the
Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the Company
are of the opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still considered
fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over these balances.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Forward currency contracts: EHINESH
Assets EE
Liabilities afE

The Group has entered into various forward currency contracts
to manage its exchange rate exposures which did not meet the
criteria for hedge accounting. Changes in the fair value of non-
hedging currency derivatives amounting to HK$86,551,000
(2012: HK$21,478,000) were credited to the income statement
during the year.

31 March 2013 —E—=F=H=+—H

22. EUWERT ()
WEREBEEFREZEBBIRR ZIRE DTN
T

Group

&m

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T B FT
517,187 633,731
87,912 48,461
11,063 1,224
616,162 683,416

VHARTEFTREZERRESRAMES -
RERPUETETARER -

CEf EEFHEZEAREBRASRELE
BAERFENRTHEZEFAR RBEIER &
RAEERHARNFEEERBERES  ZE
FEHRDAT2EWE  RUEFELRERE-
FEEBVEFRZEEREFEERR AEERA
Y] o

23. fTE€®mI A

Group
%

2013 2012
—E—= -
HK$000 HK$°000
BETFT BT T
23,528 12,661
468 4,492

AEECHTZERAFEH PEFTERNEI
BESHLUEBEHEXRKR RERN  BRRAE
KA THNETEBEENANEEZHBY
86,551,000t (=& — = : B #21,478,0007T) °

BAEEEERARN —E-=FRH
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24. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

2. RERBITEX

Group Company
£H AT
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—= —E—_—F —E—= —E—_—F
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$000
B FT B F T B FT B F T
Cash and bank balances HERBTER 538,278 258,310 219 148
Time deposits with RETZB=EAR
original maturity within EE 2 EBFER
three months when
acquired 648,705 342,801 — —
Time deposits with original A& H={@ B L L
maturity of over three BE 2 EBFER
months when acquired 836,660 24,300 — —
Structured deposits with REITZBE=EAR
original maturity within EE 2 A METER
three months when
acquired 126,358 693,453 — —
Structured deposits with RETXB=EAU L
original maturity of over B 2 B ER
three months when
acquired 3,001,362 3,181,454 — —
5,151,363 4,500,318 219 148

RBEEBR AEBUARYEE 2
RERBOTERRERERIB A B

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
and the time deposits of the Group denominated in Renminbi

("RMB"”) amounted to HK$405,540,000 (2012: HK$81,554,000)
and HK$4,004,587,000 (2012: HK$3,899,207,000), respectively.
RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

The structured deposits of HK$3,127,720,000 (2012:
HK$3,874,907,000), included in the above RMB time deposits,
are placed with banks with fixed maturity dates. Interest rate on
these structured deposits changes with reference to changes in
various currency exchange rates. Upon maturity, the principal
amounts of the structured deposits are guaranteed. The Group
uses the structured deposits primarily to enhance its return on
fixed deposits.
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#405,540,0007t( = & — = F: B ¥
81,554,000 7T ) & # #4,004,587,000 7T ( =
T — 5 :#8%3,899,207,000t) - AR
RABEARETEERALBREMEY  HER
BHREARENIMESERGREE - €E
RNEEERE AEEBEEEERE
ETHNEEBZRITEARYIRBHAM
B

BERLIAARBEHFERNBE
3,127,720,000t( —= & — = F: B ¥
3,874,907,0007T) &£ B HEER D ERERT
HWEEEHMACER LEBEERZA
ZESRMEREEEY CEEZMED -
REHPA HERBUEERZEAESARE
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24. CASH AND BANK BALANCES (continued) 24, BERBITFER@E
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily WITEREESARTERANZBRIE
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for BEXFNE BHEHEFERZERHLE—
period less than or equal to one year depending on the FEUAT BRI EAEEZHNRERESERM
immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at EoUEREEREHEFERMERRFE
the respective short term time deposit rates. The bank balances BT ERREHEREREERTNE
and time deposits are placed with creditworthy banks. 1T °
25. TRADE PAYABLES 25. BEMRRR
Group
£8
2013 2012
—EBE-=F —E—_F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T B FT
Trade payables B ER 818,685 1,333,828
An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the REMERR REZAHZEGERAERR
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: DAWMT

Group
£8
2013 2012
—_E-=fF —E—_—F
HK$'000 HK$’000
B FT BEFT
Within 90 days 90H R 797,325 1,301,175
Over 90 days 90H M k£ 21,360 32,653
818,685 1,333,828
At the end of the reporting period, the trade payables are non- RBEEHR BHERABIEMNER—RB
interest-bearing and are normally settled on 90-day terms. 90K FYBRHA ©
26. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES 26, HttEENRRAREFAE
Group
8
2013 2012
—_E—=F —E—_F
HK$’000 HK$'000
B F T B F T
Other payables H {th FE {3 BR X 277,544 144,584
Accrued liabilities Estas 331,964 291,704
609,508 436,288
Other payables and certain accruals are non-interest-bearing HttENERRBHESTEBSAEIEWE
and have an average term of three months. BE¥HRBE=M@A -

BAEEMERAT —E-=FH @



Notes To The Financial Statements Bf# R KMz

31 March 2013 —E—=F=H=+—H

27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 27.

Effective

annual

interest rate

(%) Maturity HK$°000
BRF
R =R (%) B EETT
Current T E
Bank loans BITER within
— unsecured — 4 3 48 1 year or
0.82-2.85 on demand 3,283,460
R—FR
HEER
Non-current KRB
Bank loans RITER March to
— unsecured —4m 3 48 June 2015
—E-AHF
0.82-1.80 =ZHEXA 225,000
3,508,460

Analysed into: D
Bank loans repayable: RITEFERE
Within one year or on demand R—FRAFRER
In the second year E-FR

In the third to fifth years, inclusive

All bank borrowings are in Hong Kong dollars, United States
dollars and Renminbi.

As at 31 March 2013, the Group’s banking facilities were

supported by corporate guarantees from the Company and
certain of its subsidiaries.
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EZZERFAN BEEEWF

B SR 1T E K

Effective
ELVE]
interest rate
(%)

BRF

F 2 (%)

HK$°000

BEFT

within
1 year or
0.52-1.77 on demand

R—FR
FIRER

3,193,332

July 2013 to
March 2015
—E-=5+tAZ%
—ZT-HF=A

0.79-1.7 412,567

3,605,899

Group
£H
2013 2012
—E—_—F
HK$°000
BT T

—g-=
HK$’000
BEF T

3,283,460 3,193,332
200,000 312,567
25,000 100,000
3,508,460 3,605,899

FRERITERIRBE EARARE-

RZZE-ZFZA=+—H AEEKNE
TREETDRARDRREEDHE QB FH
R -
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28. EEBIBEE

28. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

Withholding tax on
the distributable profits  Depreciation allowance
of the Group’s in excess of Revaluation of
PRC subsidiaries related depreciation properties Others
K&
AHS BHEBTEEAN
AEMBE HERKA MEER Hity A
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
ZB-=% ZZ--f 8-z ZZ--fF “B-=f “E--fF “B-=fF “T--F “B-=f ZT--F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BEFT BEFr BEFn BETn BETr BEFr BEFr  BETn
(Restated) (Restated)
(& 1&aT) (#15aT)
At beginning of year ~ RE 4] 108,538 72,671 (721) (721) 16,895 9,049 4,644 5,317 129,356 86,316
Change in accounting &3t FE 1
policy 28
— Adoption of —BR@BEBET
HKAS12 ERIE 125
Amendments [(CCHES)
(note 2.2) (Hi#2.2) - - - - (16,895) (9,049) - - (16,895) (9,049)
At beginning of year, RE#]
as restated (&1583T) 108,538 72,671 (721) (721) - - 4,644 5,317 112,461 77,267
Deferred tax charged/  F it AFIBEERT
(credited) to the ne/ (k)
income statement WEEHE
during the year (Hf&£9)
(note 9) 8,479 35,867 - — - — (61) (673) 8,418 35,194
Atend of year REKR 117,017 108,538 (721) (721) - — 4,583 4,644 120,879 112,461

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
HK$798,151,000 (2012: HK$746,982,000) that are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose. The Group has tax losses
arising in mainland China of HK$152,249,000 (2012: nil) that are
available for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose for a maximum of five
years. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries of which no
assessable profits are expected to be generated in the
foreseeable future.

Pursuant to the New Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in
mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to earnings generated after 31 December 2007.
A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax
treaty between mainland China and the jurisdiction of the
foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 10%. The
Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in mainland China
in respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

AEEBREBEEZHEEBERAB
#798,151,000t( = & — = F: B ¥
746,982,0007T)  ZEELEFBEBEN L
AUERBEAZEERERBEARZE
RBEM AEBERPEREEEZHE
518 B8 #5152,249,000 L (Z & — = & :
|) ZLEEBEBENATAIFERZE
EAEEREEZFEELEREANESRR
wA - AREHEEEEBEZHEAT
RARKRITEEERRFERN  BEEH
BEEWENZSERETER

REHFEEFEHRE PEARENIE
CEEFRAITREESRNHK SRR
0% EHRE - ZERA-ZZENEF—A
—RRER AEAR-ZZLF TR
=S+t -BREENAB - HNTREETR
FREENBE BHAEREEESH
AEEHBHE BARAKENBERS
10% ° E AR BB 2SR EAKBERKZ
HWHEARBE-ZTZENF-A-—BENER
A2 ROBREEEMNBENEE -

BAEEEERARN —E-=FRH
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28. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (continued)
There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment
of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

At 31 March 2013, the Company had no significant unrecognised
deferred tax asset/liability (2012: nil).

29. SHARE CAPITAL
Shares

28. JELEBRBRE &)
AAREHRRREZRE BEEHE
AABBFAEBZER

R-ZZ—-—=F=ZA=+—H X273 %XE
BEAABAEEREELEE BBE(ZZ—
—F M)

29. KR
ey

2013 2012
—8-= =2-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Authorised: EIE
2,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.05 each  2,000,000,000 % & f% & (&
in nominal value B #50.05 7T 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRHE:
1,363,566,104 (2012: 1,361,356,104) 1,363,566,104 (=& — — 4 :
shares of HK$0.05 each in nominal 1,361,356,104) IR B IR E &
value 7B #50.05 7T 68,178 68,068

A summary of the movements in the Company’s share capital
during the year is as follows:

Number of
shares in issue
BT

RGO BE

RRARBRARAFRAZEHEHRNOT :

Share
Issued premium
share capital account Total
28T IRZ
IR mfE AR e
HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000
BT T BT T BT T

At 1 April 2011 —E—-—%F
A—H 1,360,846,104 68,042 586,285 654,327
Exercise of share 17 % BR 42
options (a) 510,000 26 2,766 2,792
Transfer from share BB REMHE
option reserve [-PN — — 615 615
At31 March 2012 RZZTE—=fF
and 1 April 2012 =A=+—H
E=—Z——F
A—H 1,361,356,104 68,068 589,666 657,734
Exercise of share 17 5 i BR 4
options (b) 2,210,000 110 11,067 11,177
Transfer from share [ B % 52 % 1%
option reserve [N — — 165 165
At31March 2013 RZZ—=%
=A=+—8H 1,363,566,104 68,178 600,898 669,076
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29.

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Shares (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the subscription rights
attaching to 100,000 share options and 410,000 share options were
exercised at the subscription prices of HK$4.97 per share and
HK$5.60 per share (note 30), respectively, resulting in the issue of
510,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each in nominal value for a
total cash consideration, before expenses, of approximately
HK$2,792,000.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the subscription rights
attaching to 1,900,000 share options and 310,000 share options
were exercised at the subscription prices of HK$4.97 per share and
HK$5.60 per share (note 30), respectively, resulting in the issue of
2,210,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each in nominal value for a
total cash consideration, before expenses, of approximately
HK$11,177,000.

Share options

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the share

options issued under the scheme are included in note 30 to the

financial statements.

29.

A (1)
B (#8)

Ffat -

@

(@)

R-ZBE-—ZF=ZF=Z+—HILEFER"
10000017 K 41000017 Bt B 52 iE HE 2 FE IR 1E 77
B & IR B #5497 T R B 560TT 2 it B BFE
1T1E (FfaE30) - E UL - 510000/% 5 K H {28
BosTZEBRUANBER ZBEER
B8 %2792,0005T T LLBET o

R-ZE-—=Z#=ZF=+—-ALHFER"
1,900,000 17 K 310,000 17 [ff 75 53 f8 #E = i SR #&
2B BR B 15497 7T R B #5605 2 33 FEE
FETE (B aE30) - E UL - 2210000 8% & %
BB T Z EBERUFHIGER 2 #EH
EREXEH11,177,0007T 7 LA 1T ©

Bk

EA/N

AzBRESIARREZSERITZ

BREZFHAENCHRU B RRW T

30°
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30.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”),
in compliance with the requirements of Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules, for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success of
the Group’s operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme
include the Company’s directors, including independent non-
executive directors, and other employees of the Group. The
Scheme became effective on 28 August 2002 and will remain in
force for 10 years from that date, after which period no further
share options will be granted but the provisions of the share
option scheme shall remain in full force and effect in all other
respects.

The maximum number of share options permitted to be granted
under the Scheme was an amount equivalent, upon their
exercise, to 10% of the shares of the Company in issue on the
date of adoption of the Scheme. The maximum number of
shares issuable under share options to each eligible participant
in the Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further
grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the price
of the Company’s shares at the date of the grant) in excess of
HK$5,000,000, within any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28
days from the date of the offer upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
Board but is not more than ten years from the date of grant.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the Board,
but may not be less than the highest of (i) the Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of the offer of
the share options; (ii) the average Stock Exchange closing price
of the Company’s shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal value of a
share.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf# 3R R KMz

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends

31 March 2013 —E—=F=H=+—H

30. BRESE @
BRETEBTHAEEZARENERNR

or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under the

RERREREWER -

RBEHR ZABATRITEZBRED

Scheme at the end of the reporting period: T:
2013 2012
—_E-—=F —_E—_—F
Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
exercise price options exercise price options
fn#EFig fn#EF 1
TEER BREXE TEER BREHE
HK$ HK$
per share ‘000 per share ‘000
HRB T T BEREET +
At beginning of year 5.37 29,580 5.37 30,090
Exercised during the year 5.06 (2,210) 5.48 (510)
Lapsed during the year FRBERN 4.97 (9,000) — —
Cancelled during the year F X & EUH 5.60 (50) — —
At end of year RER 5.60 18,320 5.37 29,580

FACTENBERERTEE BN MEF
HERUTERBEG644T o

The weighted average closing price per share at the date of
exercise for share options exercised during the year was
HK$6.44.

RBEMR RITEBREZTEERR
TEMRMOT :

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options
outstanding at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Number of options

BRERE
Exercise price* Exercise period 2013
TEERK* (THEHAR —E-—=
HK$ per share ‘000
HFRBET F
4.97 11 September 2002 to 10 September 2012 — 10,900
TEECEART-BREZE-ZHAATH
5.60 26 March 2004 to 25 March 2014 16,900 17,100
CEENF=A+ARHEZE-NE=A=-+HA
5.60 1 April 2006 to 25 March 2014 1,420 1,580
—EERENA-HE-E-—NMF=ZA=TEHAH
18,320 29,580

FBIREAIT R B RA L BB IR IR AL IR
HRERRA P EAMBL BRG] THEZ -

* The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in *
case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the
Company'’s share capital.

BAEEEERARN —E-=FRH
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31.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

During the year, 2,210,000 (2012: 510,000) share options were
exercised resulted in the issue of 2,210,000 (2012: 510,000)
ordinary shares of the Company and new share capital of
HK$110,500 (2012: HK$25,500) and share premium of
HK$11,232,000 (2012: HK$3,381,000), as further detailed in note
29 to the financial statements.

During the year, 9,000,000 (2012: nil) share options lapsed on 10
September 2012 and 50,000 (2012: nil) share options were
forfeited and cancelled upon resignation of an employee,
resulting in a reduction in the share option reserve which was
transferred to retained profits of HK$75,000 (2012: nil).

During the year, 50,000 share options were forfeited and
cancelled by the Company (2012: nil).

At 31 March 2013, the Company had 18,320,000 share options
outstanding under the Scheme. The exercise in full of the
outstanding share options would, under the present capital
structure of the Company, result in the issue of 18,320,000
additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional share
capital of HK$916,000 and share premium of HK$101,676,000
(before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company had 18,100,000 share options outstanding under the
Scheme, which represented approximately 1.3% of the
Company’s shares in issue as at that date.

RESERVES

(@) Group
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The Group’s contributed surplus represents the difference
between the nominal value of the issued share capital of
the Company and the then nominal value of the issued
share capital of the subsidiaries acquired at the date of
acquisition, as a result of the reorganisation which
occurred before the listing of the Company’s shares in
1992.
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30.

31.

BRESTE )

RER 2,210,000 (=ZF— =% : 510,000
) BEREETFE BRAQAFARTEER
2,210,000 % (=& — = & : 510,0008%) * &
12 h0 $7 IR A 5B 110,500 T (=B — — & ¢
78 525,500 7t ) F A% 7 75 {E 78 5 11,232,000
T(ZZF— % :8%3,381,000t) 4
ERERTBERMFE29-

M E R 9,000,000 (=T —ZF : )
BRER=ZZFT—=—Fh A+ 8 K¥K50,000
H(—E-——F E)BERER—LESR
BB WREUE  E2ARA A 0ERE
% 18 (R 32 93 2R B8 0% A MRl 2 78 #5 75,000
T(ZE—=F &)

RER A2 TR WK EUE50,0004 (==
——FEBRE-

R-ZEBE-—=%=A=+—0 ' x2FHEZ
5T 81T 14755 18,320,00017 & IR A2 R AT o
BEAQXTA B EEREE  2ETHE
T 2 B8 IR FE #% 18 B0 %8 4D 2% 17 18,320,000 iR
RRPBAZEBR YHEIEERRNBE
916,000 7T & B 7 & 1E 7 % 101,676,000 7T
(BITERA) -

RABBRR 2 ZER AR B EZTE
T 15%818,100,00017 B IR ERETE - HE
RZBEARFACBITRNDN13% -

# &

(@) %8
TEERAFELAEERBESER
Hp o8B 2l REGaREE2HX
& o

HAEARARDE-AANZFEH
ANER AEBCBHEBRBED
ACBITHRACHERMBENEB
RARWBRHNZEBITRARE
ZERE



31.
(a)

(b)

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf % 3RR M5

31 March 2013 —E—=F=H=+—H

RESERVES (continued)

Group (continued)

The Group applied the transitional provisions of HKFRS 3
that permitted goodwill in respect of business
combinations which occurred prior to 2001, to remain
eliminated against consolidated retained profits. The
amount of goodwill remaining in consolidated retained
profits, arising from the acquisition of an associate prior
to the adoption of SSAP 30 in 2001, was HK$110,648,000

as at 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2012.

In accordance with the Macau Commercial Codes, Nice
Dyeing Factory (Macao Commercial Offshore) Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, whose principal
operation is conducted in Macau, is required to
appropriate annually not less than 25% of its profit after
tax to a legal reserve, until the balance of the reserve
reaches 50% of the entity’s capital fund. The reserve made

has fulfilled the statutory requirement accordingly.

31.
(a)

ERCRC Y

£8(#)
AEBCCIAEBUBREERES
FBEER AFR=ZZT—F5
BRENESCHELENE B HEN
FERBRBAME R —FK
MEERERE305EA - BUiE—
BEQNTAEENEE NEBRESE
REEANF HESBER=-_ZT-—=F=
B=+t—-HRZ-ZZE—Z-F=A=+
— B A% 110,648,000 7 °

REERFIEEH  AQF-—2EHA
MELR - KERBORMBEFEX
BRB)ERAT HEEEEFREM
BT BEFIEETOIR25% MR
BRENELRERE BEERRHER
HEEZARELEM50% - ZBA
NREECEEFEREROER -

Company (b) 2AH
Share Share Capital
premium option redemption Contributed Retained
Notes account reserve reserve surplus profits Total
BRAE AR AE &N
B et HER %R WMERFE "8EK RKREEA Et- ]
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$'000
EBEFT EBMFrT BT BN FrT EB¥TT BT
At 1 April 2011 R-ZZE—-——FEWA—AR 586,285 2,985 1,695 48,708 39,525 679,198
Exercise of share options 1T {i i iz #& 29 3,381 (615) — — — 2,766
Total comprehensive AEEXEFELAE
income for the year — — — — 943,747 943,747
2011/2012 interim —EB——/ZEB-ZFE
dividend FHIR R 11 — — — — (354,014)  (354,014)
2011/2012 proposed final —Z—— /Z—Z—_FF
dividend BRARHRE 11 — — — —  (326,725) (326,725)
At 31 March 2012 and R-ZZE-——F=A=+—8H
1 April 2012 EZZE—-—%MA—H 589,666 2,370 1,695 48,708 302,533 944,972
Exercise of share options 17 {i i it /& 29 11,232 (165) — — — 11,067
Cancellation of BUHE B IR &
share options — (75) — — 75 —
Total comprehensive AEER2HE
income for the year b ECkd — — — — 569,011 569,011
2012/2013 interim B /B -=HF
dividend hHER B 11 — — — —  (177,360)  (177,360)
2012/2013 proposed final =& —= /=2 —=%F%
dividend BORARH RS 11 — — — —  (368,222) (368,222)
At 31 March 2013 R-ZB—=F
=ZA=+—H 600,898 2,130 1,695 48,708 326,037 979,468
BAEEEERAT —ZZET-—=ZFR
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31. RESERVES (continued) 31. f#E @
(b) Company (continued) (b) AT ()
The Company’s contributed surplus represents the ERATBROE—HAAZ-ZFELH
difference between the nominal value of the issued share AMEA ARABZERHEBHBRALR
capital of the Company and the then combined net assets AT EBITRAR 2 EE 8 AT
of the subsidiaries acquired on the date of acquisition, as BAERKBRAZEHEEFEZ
a result of the reorganisation which occurred before the EZE - RBEEBRE—NWN—FQ7%
listing of the Company’s shares in 1992. Under the (BB  TIRETERTIRESH
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), a Etho

distribution may be made out of the contributed surplus

under certain circumstances.

32. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 32. RMIEARIZRE
Company
A
2013 2012
—E—= —E—_—F
HK$000 HK$°000
BETT BT T
Unlisted shares, at cost FELETRMD KA 48,908 48,908
Due from subsidiaries FEUS B B 1 B 797,095 340,903
846,003 389,811
The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and HHE AR ZRRAER DERF &R
have no fixed terms of repayment. EREETEERE -
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32.

follows:

Trustland Inc*

Nice Dyeing Factory Limited

KERBERQE

Texwinca Enterprises (China)

Limited*

wAREE) BRERAF

Dongguan Texwinca Textile &

Garment Limited *

REBAEHARKER DA

Nice Dyeing Factory (Macao

Commercial Offshore)
Limited*

K SR R P B 5 7 S AR A

BRAR*

Texwinca Enterprises Limited

BXEEERRDA

Win Ready Industrial Limited

KEEXEERAA

Winlife Trading Limited
KEFTERDE

Baleno Holdings Limited*

Yrfek EEAR DR *

Baleno Kingdom Limited

PRBARATF

Guangzhou Friendship Baleno

Co. Ltd. *

RN & GE L e BR AR 8 A PR A B

LT e AR AR *

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

All subsidiaries, other than Trustland Inc, are indirectly held by

Place of incorporation/
registration and operations

AL

BREREXEMR

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
EWMELZEE BB

Hong Kong

2

British Virgin Islands/
Mainland China
REEZHE PEKE

PRC/Mainland China

HE R E AR
Macau

P

Hong Kong
o]

Hong Kong
&

Hong Kong

British Virgin Islands
REBEZHS
Hong Kong

]
PRC/Mainland China
E R KR

PRC/Mainland China

FE T E KR

32.

the Company. Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as

Nominal value of

issued ordinary/registered
share capital
ERTEER BEERE
RAEE

US$18,000

18,000 % 7T

Ordinary HK$1,000
Non-voting deferred
HK$3,125,000

B R A 1,000T
ERERELRAE
753,125,000 7T

Us$1

1%

HK$2,557,950,000

7% 2,557,950,000 7T

MOP100,000

JELF9 %5 100,000 7T

HK$2

B2

Ordinary HK$10
Non-voting deferred
HK$2

LEBRAEEI0T
BB ERELRA
B2

HK$15,903,100
78 #515,903,100 7T

US$20,000

20,000 % 7T

HK$10,000

710,000 T

HK$103,800,000

78 5 103,800,000 7T

US$200,000

200,000 3 7T

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company
AR GRS
ZEBE
2013 2012
—E-=% —®-=f

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

64 64

64 64

64 64

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf % 3RR M5
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RHEBARZEE #)
FRTrustland Incoh - FTEME A R BHA LD
AEEEE - TEMBATFEBNOT

Principal activities

TEEK

Investment holding
REEZR

Sale of finished knitted
fabric and dyed yarn

HEHBHEREYD

Investment holding
REZER

Production and sale of
finished knitted fabric
and dyed yarn

EERMES AR
ke®

Procurement of raw
materials and sale of
finished knitted fabric
and yarn

RBRMARHE
G RBY

Provision of
management services
RMUEERY

Property holding

BEME

Property holding
FEME

Investment holding

BREZR

Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessory

ERREY 2
ZERDH

Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessory

ERREYZ
ZERDHE

64 64 Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessory

ERREY 2
ZERDH
BAEEEERAT —ZZET-—=ZFR
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32. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 32. RHMIBARZIRE (#)

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/registered

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company
AR EEER
ZEBE
2013 2012
—ET-=F —ET—--F

Place of incorporation/
registration and operations share capital

& AR 32 ERTEER BER
BRREEL RAEEE

Principal activities

TEEK

Beijing Xing Yu Baleno
Garment & Decoration
Co. Ltd *

1 REF YL e B8 AR 4% AR &
BRAF*

Chongging Dasheng Baleno
Co. Ltd *
EERERRERHERDT >

REDREHRIHERDE *

Silver Kingdom Limited *

REBERAT *

Bigpoint Limited *

RUPBRDA*

Highrich Corporation *

RERRDA*

Winca (Dongguan) Motor

Service Limited *

K (RR) TBEEERSE
BRAF*

Successful Channel Corporation *
PRIH R E R

Billion Global Limited *

R AR DA *

FMRIERREEMRAR *

@ TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013

PRC/Mainland China

FE T E AR

PRC/Mainland China

FEL P E KR

PRC/Mainland China

hE KB

British Virgin

Islands/Taiwan

HEEZEE A8

British Virgin Islands/

Mainland China

KEREZEE PEAE

British Virgin Islands/

Mainland China

REELEHS PEKE

PRC/Mainland China

FE R E AR

British Virgin Islands/
Mainland China
REELZHE PEKE

British Virgin
Islands/Taiwan
KERLZBEE A%

PRC/Mainland China

hE P E KB

US$500,000

500,000 % 7T

HK$3,880,000

73,880,000 7T

RMB500,000

A R 500,000 7T

us$1

HK$28,460,000

78 5 28,460,000 7T

us$1
1%57T

us$1

1%

RMB1,010,000

AR #1,010,000 T

64

100

100

64

64

64

64

64

100

64

100

64

64

64

Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessory

ERREYZ
ZTERDH

Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessory

ERREY 2
ZERDH

Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessory

(39532 A
ZERDH

Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessory

EARR Y2
ZERDH

Holding of trademarks
and provision of
franchise services

BFEEEREM
BHFEERE

Provision of management
services and sub-
licensing of trademarks

RHUEERER
REEERHE

Provision of repair and
maintenance services
for motor vehicles

RE"EZHER
RERB

Property holding
BEYE

Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessory

ERREY 2
ZERDH

Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessory

ERR Y2
ZERDH
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32. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 32. RMIBARIZKRE #)
Nominal value of Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ issued ordinary/registered equity attributable
registration and operations share capital to the Company Principal activities
& AR 32 ERTEZER D F) BE AL B
BRREEL EEXERAEE ZEBE TEEY
2013 2012
—EBE—=FE —EB——&£
RENCHHEERAT * PRC/Mainland China RMB5,880,000 64 64 Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessory
HE R AR A R 5,880,000 7 ERREY =
ZERDH
RAUVCKIREERAT * PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000 64 64 Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessory
HRE B KR A R #:500,000 7T BRREYZ
TERDHE
PR TR AR A B PR A ] * PRC/Mainland China RMB600,000 64 64 Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessory
E AR AR #600,0007T ERRE 2
ZERDH
Excel Billion Inc * British Virgin Us$1 64 64 Property holding
Islands/Taiwan
KEEBRER AR * RERZHEE AE 1% BEWE
KRBV RHRHHRAR * PRC/Mainland China HK$2,100,000 64 64 Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessory
B AR 2,100,000 7T ERREY =
ZERDH
* Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or other member firm * WHATKE BB EERAMEKE
of the Ernst & Young global network FHET BB FTEIR L B & H o
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in FRAAVBEADBAZHBLAR  EERAE
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for REHAEErAFECEEERTETE
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the RERFTEEEEFEZ2ETENH - ES
Group. To give details of all subsidiaries would, in the opinion of REFVNFMENBARAESERBRIT
the directors, result in particulars of excessive length. e

BAEEMERAT —E-=FH @



Notes To The Financial Statements Bt T Kzt

31 March 2013 —E—=F=H=+—H

33.

34.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

Major non-cash transaction

No major non-cash transaction for the year.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(@) At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities
not provided for in the financial statements were as
follows:

—E—-=F
HK$°000
BETT

Bank guarantees given in REBRAYERS
lieu of property rental ZRITIER
deposits

Guarantees of banking BEE NTRT
facilities granted to an EEFREZER
associate

Guarantees of banking BB ATRIT
facilities granted to EEFREZER

subsidiaries

33. MEBERERMET

TEFRERS
REEVEFEFRRERS -

3. HEEE
@) REBEHMFK  UTREEERABE
WEPEE

Group
%
2013

Company

A
2013
—E—-=F
HK$'000
BT T

2012
—_E—_F
HK$°000
BT T

2012
—E-——F
HK$°000
BETT

3,569 6,548 — —

12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500

13,765,000 11,597,000

As at 31 March 2013, the banking facilities granted to
subsidiaries with guarantees given to the banks by the
Company were utilised to the extent of approximately
HK$4,421,686,000 (2012: HK$5,413,401,000) and the
banking facilities granted to an associate with guarantees
given to the banks by the Company were not utilised
(2012: nil).

(b) During the year ended 31 March 2013, certain subsidiaries
of the Group have received the revised tax assessments
from the Inland Revenue Department (“the IRD") after
the review on the tax affairs for the years of assessment
2000/2001, 2001/2002, 2002/2003, 2003/2004, 2004/2005
and 2005/2006 as well as the additional/estimated
assessments for the year of assessment 2006/2007.
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RZZE-=%=A=+—08 M8
AFCHAALQNRAC BRTIEER
ZIRITHEEN B B ¥4,421,686,000
T(=Z — = % #%5413,401,000
) MEELARUESHALQFAE
ERITEERZBITEE(ZT—=
F M) o

) RBE-T-=F=A=t+-AL
FE AEREROHEIRKRIEE
BRER(BHEDRER-222 /=
FE- -%FF—/-%FF=---F%
- /-%F= . -FF=/=%%F
M =220/ —2FAR-FFR
S IREARRFERBEHER
TR URR TN/ =%
BLRBEENBM, B



34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(b)

(continued)

The IRD concluded that the total tax undercharged,
interest payable and compound penalty for the years of
assessment 2000/2001, 2001/2002, 2002/2003, 2003/2004,
2004/2005 and 2005/2006 is approximately HK$161,300,000
in aggregate, while the Group has purchased tax reserve
certificates totalling HK$185,000,000 for the aforesaid
years of assessment. Since the IRD is still reviewing the tax
affairs of certain subsidiaries of the Group for the year of
assessment 2005/2006, the IRD has retained HK$4,500,000
from the redemption of tax reserve certificates for the
unresolved objection and refunded the Group
approximately HK$19,200,000. The Group recognised the
refund and credited the amount as an over-provision of
tax in the year ended 31 March 2013.

The Group is no longer liable to any tax liabilities for the
years of assessment 2000/2001, 2001/2002, 2002/2003,
2003/2004 and 2004/2005. The unresolved protective tax
assessments for the years of assessment 2005/2006 and
2006/2007 issued by the IRD in March 2012 and March
2013 are HK$69,125,000 and HK$189,000,000 respectively.
As explained above, the IRD has retained a tax reserve
certificate of HK$4,500,000 pending for the finalisation of
the tax review for the year of assessment 2005/2006. For
the year of assessment 2006/2007, the IRD agreed to hold
over the tax claimed completely subject to the purchase of
tax reserve certificate in the amount of HK$31,500,000.

In view that the tax review for the years of assessment
2005/2006 and 2006/2007 is still in progress, the outcome
of the case is still uncertain. Up to the date of approval of
these financial statements, the directors of these
subsidiaries consider that adequate tax provisions have

been made in the financial statements.

34. BEE@)

(b)

(4)

BRBLEHR-FTR —FT- .=
T/ -FF- -FF= /=%
2= . -FR= /"FEN--2F

N,/ —E2EER_ZBERHZEF
E: FEAFRE KA
2 ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%émwwwwo
T ARMAEECE A LMBERFELRE
B i Bi % £L 8 % 185,000,000 7T °
RERNEERAEERDHE D
AR _ZZTH/—ZZAEHRFE
ZHBEE HRERBRORE
REELEEER#BSPREBYE
45000007%&3_$)=1i’9%*%19200000

BAEE AEECHERANER
ﬂmﬁi:g—:fﬁ:ﬁ:‘f—ﬁ
LEFEEANLBEABE2BER
o

REBIFBR-_ZEZZTE /2 F
—ZEBEE— B . _FE-
S ZEBE= . ZEF= /2T FENR

—EEN—EEREREERE
EABREEE -RER-_ZT——-F=
AR-Z—=F=ZAR=-%ZTH
TEEARARIEER/ZZETLR
HEERENREEBBTMEE R
2R 5 Bl & 78 % 69,125,000 7t & 78 i
189,000,000 7T ° #0 F 3 At - & /@R
B T 7 4,500,000 7T /Y 5 B H B &
—EER/ZEEAEREENH
BEREE R-_ZT2EXR /-T2t
REFE VHREEAEEEMANEI
BRNBRR ML ERERNSSHE
7 #£31,500,000 7T °

HR-Z2H,/—EEAR-EE

AV tﬁ&i&ﬁﬁ@ﬁm
HETH BEHNERDARTH
BeBEAMBERERZERD  FEMK
BRARAEERAMBEHRERPZ2HE
BEC R -

BAEEEERARN —E-=FRH
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35. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a)

(b)

As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 14) and
sublets certain properties under operating lease
arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms ranging
from one to five years. The terms of the leases generally
also require the tenants to pay security deposits and
provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the
then prevailing market conditions.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total
future minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable

operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows:

Within one year R—FR
In the second to fifth years, inclusive HE-ZE£RFR
(BREEME)

As lessee

The Group leases certain land and buildings for factories,
retail outlets, plant and machinery, a training centre, and
staff and directors’ quarters under operating lease
arrangements. Such leases are negotiated for terms of not
more than 50 years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases with its landlords falling due as follows:

Within one year R—FR

In the second to fifth years, inclusive HE-ZE£RER
(BREEWE)

After five years REF#
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35. REMHERY

(a)

(b)

ERHBEA

FEBRBELEHETHHMEET
REMX(MZT 14 RERBOY
¥ ORTHEB-FERF -BHOKR
—REEEPASBTRBRERA]
RARBESTSEREHFELE

R|BEMR AEEREEBET
ZRAHERERESN ZRARE
BEWEHSEBINHBERMOT :

Group
£=
2013 2012
—E—=F —E—_F
HK$’000 HK$’000
B FT BT T
21,136 19,604
29,486 25,653
50,622 45,257
fERAEBA

FEERBELEHEZHAREN
tREFAERE TEMAT K
EREM FIPLREIRESRE
T REHANRTHABTIBBEA +
F o

RB|ERR REBRBEEFT L
MAAHECEREENRREKE
EAESHABIBBERDOT :

Group
&

2013 2012
—E—=fF —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BEF T
570,920 507,033
744,842 943,724
617,691 881,503
1,933,453 2,332,260
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35. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (continued)

(b)

As lessee (Continued)

The operating lease rentals of certain retail outlets are
based on the higher of a fixed rental or the contingent
rent based on the sales of the retail outlets pursuant to
the terms and conditions as set out in the respective rental
agreements. As the future sales of these retail outlets
could not be estimated reliably, the relevant contingent
rent has not been included above and only the minimum
lease commitment has been included in the above table.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had no
commitments under operating lease arrangements (2012:
nil).

36. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The commitments for capital expenditure of the Group at the

end of the reporting period were as follows:

In respect of property, plant and mYE - BER
equipment, contracted but not R BIXN
provided for BRIZEE

In respect of property, plant and BUME- -BER
equipment, authorised but not BB CRE
contracted for BRBITHN

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had no capital

commitments (2012: nil).

31 March 2013 —E—=F=H=+—H

35. REMERF@

(b) EREBAGH)
BOZEMM2KERAQNES IR
BEHEHREFBEBEOME 2%
RERGHREZEMMHEEEMET
ZHRREEMEPT RS EFE A
REZEBGEFLEZEMN D RR
ZHER WM ERATFTAMBELAA
T MAFARBERESEE -

REFEHR  ALFAELLHAER
HERECE-—Z_F 8-

36. EARMEE
REBRARSHRAE U T E AN Z HAIE

2013 2012
—EBE-=F —E—_F

HK$°000 HK$°000
BETT BETT

114,274 2,698
191,159 113,994
305,433 116,692

RBEHR AR EERMEE(ZZ
—ZFE )

BAkEEEERAR —Z-=ZFH
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(@) During the year, the Group had the following related
party transactions:

37.

BEALRS
() REM AEEZETATHEAL
25

Sales to Megawell HEFEE
Purchases from Megawell R ERE
Rental expenses paid to related  EEIE QT XFHEE
companies EH
Notes:
(i) The sales to Megawell, an associate of the Group, were

made according to the prices and conditions offered to the
major customers of the Group.

(i) The directors considered that the purchases from Megawell
were made according to the prices and conditions similar to
those offered to other customers of Megawell.

(iii)  The rental expenses were paid to related companies, of
which certain directors of the Company are also the
directors and beneficial shareholders, for the provision of
directors’ quarters, retail outlets and a training centre for
certain subsidiaries in Hong Kong and mainland China. The
directors considered that the monthly rentals were charged
based on the prevailing market rates at the dates of
entering into the tenancy agreements. The rental expenses
of the directors’ quarters were included in the directors’
remuneration as detailed in note 7 to the financial
statements.

In addition, the Company and the Group have provided
certain guarantees for banking facilities granted to
Megawell, as detailed in note 34(a) to the financial
statements.
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2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
HK$°000 HK$°000
EBETFT BT T
381,296 468,099
259,281 433,730
24,177 24,528
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

As at 31 March 2013, Nice Dyeing Factory Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has provided
advances of HK$11,996,000 (2012: HK$23,233,000) to
Baleno Kingdom Limited, a non-wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, at Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
("HIBOR") plus 3% (2012: HIBOR Plus 3%) per annum. The
advances are unsecured and have no fixed terms of
repayment.

As at 31 March 2013, Nice Dyeing Factory (Macao
Commercial Offshore) Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, has provided advances of HK$273,196,000
(2012: HK$311,638,000) to Baleno Holdings Limited, a
non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, at 5.78%
(2012: 5.3%) per annum. The advances are unsecured and
have no fixed terms of repayment.

As at 31 March 2013, Dongguan Texwinca Textile and
Garment Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, has provided advances of HK$401,690,000
(2012: HK$517,395,000) to Guangzhou Friendship Baleno
Co. Ltd., a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
at 3.04% (2012: 1.16%) per annum. The advances are
unsecured and have no fixed terms of repayment.

The principal purpose of the above advances is to finance
the operations of Baleno Holdings Limited and its
subsidiaries. The transactions were entered into based on
normal commercial terms agreed between the relevant
parties.
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(0 On 26 March 2012, the Group entered into a lease
agreement with Mountain Rich Limited (“MRL"”), a
company controlled and owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an
executive director and controlling shareholder of the
Company, to lease Tianjin Bin Jiang Fu Shi Commercial
Building at Tianjin City, He Ping Qu, Bin Jiang Road 282-
286, Tianjin, China from MRL as a retail outlet for the
retail and distribution business of the Group for a term of
two years commencing from 1 April 2012 at the monthly
rents of RMB948,000 and RMB995,000 for the first year
and the second vyear, respectively. During the year, the
Group paid operating lease rentals in respect of the
above property to MRL amounting to HK$14,019,000

(2012: HK$12,035,000).

On 26 March 2012, the Group entered into a lease
agreement with Latex (Hong Kong) Limited (“Latex”), a
company wholly-owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an
executive director and controlling shareholder of the
Company, to lease 22 Perkins Road, Jardine’s Lookout,
Hong Kong from Latex as a director’s quarter of the
Group for a term of two years commencing from 1 April
2012 at the monthly rent of HK$360,000. During the year,
the Group paid operating lease rentals in respect of the
above property to Latex amounting to HK$4,320,000

(2012: HK$4,320,000).

On 26 March 2012, the Group entered into a lease
agreement with Winson Link Enterprises Limited
("WLEL"), a company wholly-owned by Mr. Poon Bun
Chak, an executive director and controlling shareholder of
the Company, to lease Room 4207B, 42nd Floor,
Metroplaza Tower Il, 223 Hing Fong Road, Kwai Chung,
New Territories, Hong Kong from WLEL as a training
center of the Group for a term of two years commencing
from 1 April 2012 at the monthly rent of HK$42,000.
During the year, the Group paid operating lease rentals in
respect of the above property to WLEL amounting to

HK$504,000 (2012: HK$456,000).

On 26 March 2012, the Group entered into a lease
agreement with Grand Treasure Investment Limited
("GTL"), a company wholly-owned by Mr. Poon Kei Chak,
an executive director and a shareholder of the Company,
and his spouse, to lease 28 La Salle Road, House 5,
Kowloon from GTL as a director’s quarter of the Group for
a term of one year commencing from 1 April 2012 at the
monthly rent of HK$300,000. During the year, the Group
paid operating lease rentals in respect of the above
property to GTL amounting to HK$3,600,000 (2012:

HK$3,600,000).
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

() (continued)

On 26 March 2012, the Group entered into a lease
agreement with Essential Guide Limited (“EGL"”), a
company wholly-owned by Mr. Poon Kai Chak, an
executive director and a shareholder of the Company, and
Mr. Poon Ho Wa, an executive director of the Company,
and their respective spouses, to lease Flat H, 28/F., Tower
1, The Belcher’s, 89 Pok Fu Lam Road, Pok Fu Lam, Hong
Kong from EGL as a director’s quarter of the Group for a
term of one year commencing from 1 April 2012 at the
monthly rent of HK$89,000. During the year, the Group
paid operating lease rentals in respect of the above
property to EGL amounting to HK$1,068,000 (2012:

HK$1,116,000).

On 26 March 2012, the Group entered into a lease
agreement with Wide Profit Corporation Limited (“WPL"),
a company wholly-owned by Mr. Poon Kai Chak, an
executive director and a shareholder of the Company, and
his spouse, to lease Flat A, 10/F., Trafalgar Court, 70 Tai
Hang Road from WPL as a director’s quarter of the Group
for a term of one year commencing from 1 April 2012 at
the monthly rent of HK$80,000. On 1 April 2012, the
above lease agreement was cancelled. During the year,
the Group did not pay any operating lease rental in
respect of the above property to WPL (2012:

HK$1,440,000).

On 26 March 2012, the Group entered into a lease
agreement with Sonway Enterprises Limited (“SWL"), a
company wholly-owned by Mr. Ting Kit Chung, an
executive director and a shareholder of the Company, and
his spouse, to lease 3/F., Ernest Court, 27 Ngan Mok Street,
Hong Kong from SWL as a director’s quarter of the Group
for a term of one year commencing from 1 April 2012 at
the monthly rent of HK$30,000. During the year, the
Group paid operating lease rentals in respect of the above
property to SWL amounting to HK$360,000 (2012:

HK$1,560,000 in respect of another property).

On 26 March 2012, the Group entered into a lease
agreement with Million World Limited (“MWL"), a
company wholly-owned by the son, the daughter-in-law
and the spouse of Mr. Poon Kai Chak, an executive
director and a shareholder of the Company, to lease Flat
A, 31/F., Tower 8, Bel-air on the Peak, Hong Kong from
MWL as a staff quarter of the Group for a term of one
year commencing from 1 April 2012 at the monthly rent
of HK$25,500. During the year, the Group paid operating
lease rentals in respect of the above property to MWL

amounting to HK$306,000 (2012: nil).
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Notes To The Financial Statements Bt T Kzt

31 March 2013 —&—=F=H=+—H

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 37. BAXXRZ @)

(d) A non-controlling shareholder of the Group's 64%-owned d K& BEABMA%(Z=ZZT — = F:
subsidiary (2012: 64%) had provided an unconditional 64%) BB AR 2 HP — 3%
guarantee to indemnify the Group from any loss arising BRERAEBEANS—HEFTER
from the recoverability of prepayments made to a supplier B #50926,000T(ZF——F : B
of the Group of HK$5,926,000 (2012: HK$9,755,000) as 9,755,000 7T ) £2 i 8 {5k #F & 4R LA f B
included in the balance of the prepayments, deposits and FAAREEDW EzB% REKE
other receivables of the Group as at the end of the HER ZHCERRAEENEMAR
reporting period. B eREMERRRGERF

(e) Compensation of key management personnel of the (e) AEBEXEEEAEHM:

Group:

2013 2012
—E—=F —E—_F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BEFT
Short term employee benefits EHEERER 88,131 100,167
Post-employment benefits BEEREREA 73 71

Compensation for non- TMERFABNEHE
competition undertaking — 4,960

Total compensation paidtokey FEEEAE

management personnel E FRE 88,204 105,198
The key management personnel of the Group refer to the AEENEFEEBAEBNERAQAAAN
executive directors of the Company. HITES -
Further details of directors’ remuneration are included in EEHSF BN T BBRRMET -

note 7 to the financial statements.

Save as disclosed under “Details of non-exempt continuing HRIEENRESERERNTERENITE
connected transactions” of the Report of the Directors, the BEXISHBIN LHBEEATRS (KR
related party transactions above, except (a)(i) and (ii), constitute aiY k()M AR LETHRAFUVAEREE
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions HEeEHRAER AERNBIREIAEN
which are exempted from the reporting, announcement and BEXSFAEEBEERS

independent shareholders’ approval requirements as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf# 3R R KMz

31 March 2013 —E—=F=H=+—H

38. REFBSINEMITA
RBEHR TESHITARBENT :

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Group
Financial assets

£H
EHEE

Financial assets
at fair value

Held-to- through profit
maturity or loss — held Loans and
investments for trading receivables
LA REE
BEHZHFA
Bai
=S TRMEE— BRK
EHNIRE BEEE RRIE =
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BT B FrT EETT EBETT
Trade receivables FE U BR R — — 616,162 616,162
Bills receivable — external EWEE
trade —HEES — — 318,698 318,698
Bills receivable — intra-group FE U Z 15
trade —EBRBES — — 874,509 874,509
Due from an associate FE U EE & A A — - 55,733 55,733
Financial assets included in BRERBELRE -
prepayments, deposits AEREMER
and other receivables RRAZESREE — — 375,516 375,516
Held-to-maturity investments 5 Z Z|HIMV IR & 12,634 — — 12,634
Long term rental deposits REHSEZES — — 149,122 149,122
Derivative financial assets TESRMEE — 23,528 — 23,528
Cash and bank balances B RBITER — — 5,151,363 5,151,363
Group =
Financial liabilities THEE

Financial liabilities
at fair value
through profit

or loss — held

for trading

LA REFE

Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost

BEZFHA
BEM
e E—
FIFEH
HK$000
EBMFT

2 85 AN
ABREY
EREE
HK$000
BETF T

At
HK$'000
EEF

Trade payables FEAS BR X 818,685 818,685
Bills payable — external trade ERZEE—HNBES — 35,148 35,148
Bills payable — intra-group trade B Zi5 —SE B AR EZ Z — 874,509 874,509
Financial liabilities included in BEREMENSRRR

other payables and accrued EitaERZ

liabilities cRAaE — 277,544 277,544
Derivative financial liabilities fTESREE 468 — 468
Interest-bearing bank borrowings Hff 28817 & & — 3,508,460 3,508,460

BAEEEERARN —E-=FRH



Notes To The Financial Statements Bt T Kzt
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued) 38. BREFEESWLRMIE#)

Group £H
Financial assets SEEE
Financial assets
at fair value
Held-to- through profit
maturity or loss—held Loans and
investments for trading receivables
DAREFE
BHEZBE A
BEW
SRMEE— EXRE
BREIHNKRE BEEE EhINE a%
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
EBETT BT T BT T BT T
Trade receivables FE UK BR X — — 683,416 683,416
Bills receivable — external FEW ZEE
trade —HNEHE 5 — — 403,450 403,450
Bills receivable — intra- EWZEE
group trade —SERBES — — 1,707,485 1,707,485

Financial assets included in B35 RE{S 218 -
prepayments, deposits ek EMER

and other receivables BERACERMERE — — 227,060 227,060
Held-to-maturity BREIABNKRE
investments 23,384 — — 23,384
Long term rental deposits EHHEERE — — 122,092 122,092
Derivative financial assets T4 £ m&EE — 12,661 — 12,661
Cash and bank balances  R&REITER — — 4,500,318 4,500,318
Group %
Financial liabilities SHEE

Financial liabilities

at fair value
through profit or Financial
loss — held for liabilities at
trading amortised cost
LA REFE
BEEZHFA
Bm i RS R A
SRBE— AR
BEEE - =R &%
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BYF T B FT BEFT
Due to an associate T EE QR — 9,715 9,715
Trade payables AR — 1,333,828 1,333,828
Bills payable — external EAE
trade — B S — 93,469 93,469
Bills payable — intra-group ~ FE{t E 1§
trade —KEBARNES — 1,707,485 1,707,485
Financial liabilities included BIEREtENERRI R
in other payables and EitEaERz
accrued liabilities ol S=R — 144,584 144,584
Derivative financial liabilities £T4+ £ m A& 4,492 — 4,492
Interest-bearing bank HERITER
borrowings — 3,605,899 3,605,899
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt %3 R

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued)
Company
Financial assets

Due from subsidiaries FEWHT B A |l
Financial assets included in BERBEARIE FTEk
prepayments and deposits HibEWRRAZEMERE
Dividend receivable RS
Cash and bank balances ReRBITHER
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities included in accrued BERESEERZ
liabilities ERMERE
39. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and
disclosing the fair values of financial instruments:

Level 1:

Level 2:

Level 3:

fair values measured based on quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities;

fair values measured based on valuation techniques for
which all inputs which have a significant effect on the
recorded fair value are observable, either directly or
indirectly;

fair values measured based on valuation techniques for
which any inputs which have a significant effect on the
recorded fair value are not based on observable market
data (unobservable inputs).

38.

39.

31 March 2013 —E—=F=H=+—H

RERISNEMIA®W
A
THEE
2013 2012
—_EBE-—=F —_E—_F
Loans and Loans and
receivables receivables
EXRRERRE EXREKRIE
HK$'000 HK$’000
BT BT T
797,095 340,903
52 —
570,000 950,000
219 148
2BAM

2013 2012
—E—= —E—=F
Financial Financial

liabilities at liabilities at

amortised cost amortised cost
RBERAAERE REHEAARAR
Nemas HemaE
HK$°000 HK$000

B F T B F T

130 126

DREER
FEBRAUTSREERKELRIA
ZRARE:

E-HHUERZEESEERERT S
ZHRECREAB)FTEZDINE

TR -BBEEHEEFEZLAAEBE W2
HEARBEAABEEREE
BMAERYTEESBERES
N

B REGEEFTEZLOAE WA
AHFTHIARNEEEAREZ
MAERYAYEREITER S
BEE(TEREERERZBAER) -

BAEEEERARN —E-=FRH



39.

40.

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (continued)
As at 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2012, the financial
instruments measured at fair value held by the Group comprised

derivative financial instruments and were classified as Level 2.

During the years ended 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2012,
there were no transfers of fair value measurements between
Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than
derivatives, comprise bank loans, cash and bank deposits. The
main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance
for the Group’s operations. The Group has various other
financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables, bills
receivables, trade payables and bills payables, which arise

directly from its operations.

The Group also enters into derivative instruments, including
principally forward currency contracts. The purpose is to manage
currency risks arising from the Group’s operations and its sources
of finance.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The board reviews and agrees policies for managing each
of these risks and they are summarised below. The Group’s
accounting policies in relation to derivatives are set out in note
2.4 to the financial statements.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s bank borrowings with
floating interest rates.

The Group’s policy is to manage its interest cost using an
appropriate mix of fixed and variable rate debts. To manage this
mix in a cost-effective manner, the Group may enter into
interest rate swap contracts to reduce its exposure to interest
rate fluctuations.
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40.

Notes to the Financial Statements Bt %3 R

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s and the Company’s profit before tax

and equity (through the impact on floating rate borrowings).

31 March 2013 —E—=F=H=+—H

40. BIEREEEERBE @)

FERR (H)
TERMRTEBEFEEMBEENER
T AEERARADOBRBEAGENRES
HEEBERUENFZZEH (FHILER
VB R

Group Company
RE PN
Increase/ Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) in (decrease) in
(decrease) profit before profit before
in interest rate tax and equity tax and equity
FR B A a Al & RR B Al s Al &
A =420, FE BN R
(R 2) / ORL2) /R 2)
% HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BETT
2013 —E—-=F
Hong Kong dollar e 1 (36,645) —
Hong Kong dollar B (1) 36,645 —
2012 —E-——F
Hong Kong dollar B s 1 (34,415) —
Hong Kong dollar it (1) 34,415 —
Foreign currency risk SRR

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures
arise from sales or purchases by operating units in currencies
other than the units’ functional currencies. Approximately 29%
(2012: 29%) of the Group's sales are denominated in currencies
other than the functional currency of the operating units
making the sale, whilst almost 32% (2012: 28%) of costs are
denominated in currencies other than the units’ functional
currencies.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the RMB
exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group's profit before tax and the Group’s equity (due to
changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities).

AEBEERXRZERRR  ZEBREE
EENUZENEES U T
HERRB - AEEHN29% (ZF—=F:
29%) Z S5 TH LA AT & BS v Th RS & W LU Sb
CEREE AN (ZF—Z4F:
28%) Z PR AN Th LA £ & BS (v Ih A% & HE L Sb
CZEMEE

TERRTRBEEHMR EEEREEM
BENERT  AEBEHNBRBAERRAR
EENESHAERTENARKERS
HEREEHEENEELIAEBNES)
AR

BAEEEERARN —E-=FRH
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 40. B EKRETEEERKE &)

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

2013 —E-=F

If Hong Kong dollar weakens BB EARE
against RMB BE

If Hong Kong dollar strengthens i BHEH AR
against RMB HE

2012 —E2-—-F

If Hong Kong dollar weakens BB EARYE
against RMB BE

If Hong Kong dollar strengthens il BHEH AR
against RMB HE

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group’s policy that only well-established
customers will be considered for open account terms and the
approval of credit terms is subject to stringent credit check
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and bank balances, and derivative financial
instruments, arises from default of the counterparties, with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these
instruments, which is considered by the directors as not
significant as the counterparties of these other financial assets
are mainly well-recognised corporations.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade and bills receivables are disclosed
in note 22 to the financial statements.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES AND 40. BB RREEEERKE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank
overdrafts and bank loans. As at 31 March 2013, 6.0% (2012:
11.0%) and 94.0% (2012: 89.0%) of the Group’s total borrowings
would mature after one year and in less than one year,
respectively.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, was as follows:

B E B
AEBEEZEFNARTEIRBITERU
FEAESHNEEHEREETEMEFEE-
MRZE-=Z=HE=ZA=+—-H AEEAE
H6.0% (= F — = F :11.0%) &94.0%
(ZE—-ZHF:89.0%) 2B #BR—F&ER
—FREEH-

FEBRBEPRNEMEE BEFR
BEAXNNEBERAENT :

Group £EEF
2013
—_F—=
Less than 3 to less than
On demand 3 months 12 months 1 to 5 years Total
=
RER Z@AAUA +=ZEAR —ZHF &st
HKS$'000  HK$°000 HKS$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
BEFT BETT B FT BETT EBEFT
Interest-bearing bank i BERITE K
borrowings — 2,651,134 654,890 226,696 3,532,720
Trade payables FEFERFR — 797,325 21,360 - 818,685
Bills payables — external trade fE{JZ#E — I E 5 — 35,148 — — 35,148
Bills payables — intra-group BN Zi —£ENBE 5
trade — 872,907 1,602 — 874,509
Financial liabilities included BEREMEMERERR
in other payables and EitEaErzemBas
accrued liabilities 172,627 104,917 — — 277,544
Derivative financial liabilities T4 £ @& & — 390 78 — 468
172,627 4,461,821 677,930 226,696 5,539,074

On demand

RER

HK$’000

BT T

Due to an associate g E AT —
Interest-bearing bank M ERITER

borrowings —

Trade payables A IRR —

Bills payables — external trade fE{JZiE — /N E Z —
Bills payables — intra-group N Zi —£ENHE 5

trade —
Financial liabilities included BEREMEMERR

in other payables and EtEErRzERAas

accrued liabilities 60,276

Derivative financial liabilities ~ fT4 £ & & & —

2012
—EB—__—F

3 to less

Less than than
3 months 12 months 1 to 5 years Total

=z
ZEAARA T=EAR —ERF A&t
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BEFT EBETT EBETFT
9,715 — — 9,715
2,929,501 278,562 414,581 3,622,644
1,301,175 32,653 — 1,333,828
93,394 75 — 93,469
700,063 1,007,422 — 1,707,485
84,068 — 240 144,584
732 3,760 — 4,492

60,276

5,118,648 1,322,472 414,821 6,916,217

BAEEEERARN —E-=FRH
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 40. B EBREEEERKE @)
POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued) BN R ()
Company AT

2013
—E—=fF

3 to less

Less than than

On demand 3 months 12 months 1 to5 years Total

=z

RER =@AMA t-@AR -EHF &t
HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
BETT  BMTT  BETT  BMTT BT

Financial liabilities BENRETEERZ

included in accrued 2RBaE

liabilities 130 — — — 130
Guarantees of banking BEATICEA

facilities granted to RITEE

subsidiaries FiEZ R 4,421,686 — — — 4,421,686

4,421,886 — — — 4,421,886

2012
—E—_—F
3 to less

Less than than

On demand 3 months 12 months 1 to 5 years Total

=5

BRER =ZEAUR +=EAR —ZEHF a5t
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000
BT BEFT BT EBETFT BETT

Financial liabilities BERETEBRZ

included in accrued EA-N=NE

liabilities 126 — — — 126
Guarantees of banking AMBLARCEA

facilities granted to RITEE

subsidiaries to the e 2 FER

extent utilised 5,413,401 — — — 5,413,401

5,413,527 — — — 5,413,527
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND  40.

POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group will be
able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return
to the ordinary equity holders through the optimisation of the
debt and equity balance.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March
2013 and 31 March 2012.

The Group monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is total
interest-bearing debts, less cash and bank balances, divided by
total equity. The Group’s policy is to maintain the gearing ratio
at an appropriate level.

B BB
Nk RERBRITERK

Total interest-bearing debts
Less: Cash and bank balances

RS
EFXE/HR

Total equity

Gearing ratio

31 March 2013 —E—=F=H=+—H
HERREEEZERBEK @

BEXER

FEEEFREERABRAEEERASHE
NEEEN ANEBRENETERES
HE UEEBREMEESIERAEE -

FEBEREAEBURBELEERLY
ERFHBAE - AEBTUBBAEHR
RIKBEHNRE BRRBBERRBITH
BRAGRBRAREREB REE2-F—
=ZHF=ZA=Z+-HRZZE-ZH=Z/A=+
—HEFER EXEENER BER

AEBEREREEBHEEZEL BX
BEEERIBRASRBTERENEMN
EEBBRUARRHE FAEENRKE
EHREBERABLERSEKRT -

Group
=

2013 2012
—ZE2—= —E——F
HK$°000 HK$°000
B FT B F T
(Restated)

(&AEET)

3,508,460 3,605,899
(5,151,363) (4,500,318)
(1,642,903) (894,419)
6,170,455 5,885,980
N/A TE A N/A TiEF

BAEEEERARN —E-=FRH
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42.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

As further explained in note 2.2 to the financial statements, due
to the adoption of revised HKFRSs during the current year, the
accounting treatment and presentation of certain items and
balances in the financial statements have been revised to comply
with the new requirements. Accordingly, certain prior year
adjustments have been made, certain comparative amounts
have been reclassified and restated to conform with the current
year's presentation and accounting treatment, and a third
statement of financial position as at 1 April 2011 has been
presented.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the board of directors on 17 June 2013.
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AWK T 2202 HRAFER
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